
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

  

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKET 

Regular Board Meeting  
Wednesday, December 15, 2021 

7:00 P.M. Regular Board Meeting 

Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 

1



Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for December 15, 2021 - Pg.1 

 

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday December 15, 2021 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.  
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board Chambers will be open to the public as well as 
attendance by video conference and telephone for this meeting. Masks are required for in person attendance.  
On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law AB 361, enabling public agencies to continue using 
teleconferencing with modified notice and physical access requirements for public meetings during a proclaimed 
State of Emergency.  

In response to the current proclaimed State of Emergency, and recommended measures to promote social 
distancing imposed by State and local officials, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board 
of Directors will take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of AB 361, including, ensuring that 
the Directors and meeting attendees may continue to have the option to access and participate in this public 
meeting by teleconference to avoid imminent risks to the health or safety of the Directors and meeting 
attendees.  

TO ATTEND IN PERSON:  Masks are required to be worn inside the building. 

TO ATTEND BY WEBINAR:  
Please register for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors at: (copy and paste into your browser 
the registration URL) 

Registration URL: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2033902315064351246 
Webinar ID# 636-389-419 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar by computer or by phone. 

For listen-only mode dial: (562) 247-8321 ID# 949-796-620 

Download Agenda Packet and Materials at www.todb.ca.gov 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.) 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.
2. Roll Call.
3. Veteran Remembrance.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is
before the Board for consideration.  Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

2

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2033902315064351246
http://www.todb.ca.gov/


Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for December 15, 2021 - Pg.2 

comment. There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability 
of Board members to discuss matters not on the agenda.  We ask that you refrain from personal attacks 
during comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only.  Any clarifying questions from the 
Board must go through the President.  Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of 
the Directors.  

C. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. Approve DRAFT minutes of Board of Directors meeting for November 17, 2021.
2. Approve Register of District Invoices.
3. Approve Resolution 2021-21 Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Body

of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Pursuant to the Brown Act Provisions.

D. PRESENTATIONS
1. Introduction of Janie Carter Administrative Assistant/Parks and Recreation Assistant.
2. Veolia Report.
3. Landscape Median Project.

E. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS
1. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Sending a Board Member Representative to the Lakeshore

Homeowners Association (HOA) Meeting on January 11, 2022.
2. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Caltrans’ Proposed Striping Plan for the Intersection of

Highway #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd.
3. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Town of Discovery Bay Water System Emergency

Response Plan (ERP).
4. Discussion and Possible Action Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into Agreements with 1)

Brandis Tallman, A Division of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. for Municipal Bond Underwriting Services; 2)
Jones Hall Law Firm for Bond and Disclosure Counsel Services; 3) Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates for
Municipal Advisor Services.

5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Authorization to Waive Annual $224 Vacant Lot Fee for Contra
Costa Water District Los Vaqueros Pipeline Parcel Crossing Wastewater Plant #2 Property in Order to
Complete Annexation of Plant #2 Property and Removal of Two Previously Detached Parcels from the
Town Sphere of Influence.

6. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve a Second Amended and Restated Memorandum of
Understanding for Implementation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the East Contra Costa
Subbasin.

7. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Storage Space Lease Agreement between the Town of
Discovery Bay and the Discovery Bay Lions Club and a Storage Space Lease Agreement with the
Discovery Bay Community Foundation.

8. Decide whether the Town’s Board of Directors want to consider a future agenda item to adopt a proposal
limiting the number of terms a Director may serve on the Town’s Board of Directors and direct the Town’s
General Manager and staff accordingly.

F. MANAGERS REPORTS
1. Competitive Grant Update.
2. Per Capita Grant Update.
3. Contra Costa County Per Capita Grant Update.
4. Synthetic Turf Update.

G. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORTS

H. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS
1. Special finance Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Bryon Gutow) December

15, 2021.
2. Special Water & Wastewater Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Ashley

Porter) December 15, 2021.

3



Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for December 15, 2021 - Pg.3 

I. DIRECTOR’S REGIONAL MEETING REPORTS
1. ECCFPD Meeting 11-10-2021 attended by Director Graves.
2. ECCFPD Meeting 11-15-2021 attended by Director Graves.
3. Aviation Meeting 11-15-2021 attended by Director Graves.

J. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S)

K.  ADJOURNMENT
1. Adjourn to the Next Regular Board of Director’s Meeting, beginning at 7 PM at the Community Center

located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.”  

"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal 
business hours." 

4



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for November 17, 2021 - Pg.1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday November 17, 2021, 7:00 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board Chambers will be open to the public as well as 
attendance by video conference and telephone for this meeting. Masks are required for in person attendance.  
On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law AB 361, enabling public agencies to continue using 
teleconferencing with modified notice and physical access requirements for public meetings during a proclaimed 
State of Emergency.  

In response to the current proclaimed State of Emergency, and recommended measures to promote social 
distancing imposed by State and local officials, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of 
Directors will take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of AB 361, including, ensuring that the 
Directors and meeting attendees may continue to have the option to access and participate in this public meeting 
by teleconference to avoid imminent risks to the health or safety of the Directors and meeting attendees.  

TO ATTEND IN PERSON:  Masks are required to be worn inside the building. 

TO ATTEND BY WEBINAR:  
Please register for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors at: (copy and paste into your browser 
the registration URL) 

Registration URL: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/5077404376818067214 
Webinar ID# 917-287-875 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar by computer or by phone. 

For listen only mode dial: (415)-930-5321 ID# 638-502-296 

If there is any disruption to the meeting due to unforeseen circumstances we will continue via 
teleconference. 

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE 
Toll-free Dial-in Number (877) 252-8822 
CONFERENCE CODE 507599 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/ 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by President Bryon Gutow.
3. Roll Call – All present.

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

5

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/5077404376818067214
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/5077404376818067214


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for November 17, 2021 - Pg.2 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
There was one Public Comment Speaker. 
 
VP Graves made a recommendation to open meeting on 12/15 honoring the Pearl Harbor survivors and their 
families. Would like to memorialize them with a moment of silence and thank them for their service. VP 
Graves thanked Public Comment Speaker about reminding us and bringing our attention to this important 
event in history. 

 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve November 3, 2021, Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes. 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices. 
3. Approve Resolution No. 2021-19 Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings Of The Legislative 

Body Of The Town Of Discovery Bay Community Services District Pursuant To Brown Act Provisions. 
Motion made by Director Ashley Porter to approve items on the Consent Calendar as presented. 
Second by Director Carolyn Graham. 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

 
D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS 

1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report. 
Deputy Chief of Staff for Diane Burgis, Lea Castleberry - Not in attendance 

2. Sheriff’s Office Report. 
Sheriff Lieutenant Mark Johnson - Not in attendance 

3. CHP Report. 
California Highway Patrol Officer Donnie Thomas - Not in attendance 

4. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report. - Not in attendance 
 
E. PRESENTATIONS 

1. Presentation from CSDA Field Coordinator, Colleen Haley - Presenting (2) awards from Special District 
Leadership Foundation:             

a) District of Distinction Recognition – Platinum Level 
b) District Transparency of Excellence Award 

      
Colleen Haley, the CSDA Bay Area Public Affairs Field Coordinator presented the Board of Directors with 
two awards on behalf of the Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF). 

 
First award presented was the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence Renewal for 2021. The 
District received this award in 2014 and has kept it current since that time. The second award was the 
highest level rating for a Special District, the District of Distinction Accreditation - Platinum Level.  

 
About Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF). It is a 501(c)(3) not for profit arm of California 
Special Districts Association (CSDA) which is dedicated to promoting excellence in special districts 
through recognition programs to highlight and focus on the implementation of governance and best 
practices. 

 
The Transparency Certificate of Excellence demonstrates the District’s understanding and respect for 
responsibility inherent for providing essential public services. It shows the District has clean audits and 
operates in a fiscally responsible manner.  The District has completed all necessary requirements and 
has demonstrated a tangible acknowledgement of District Transparency efforts. This accreditation stays 
in effect for 3 years and will expire in December 2024. 

  
The District of Distinction program enables districts to demonstrate to their communities, the media, 
legislators and other stakeholders their commitment to operate in a sound and responsible manner. This 
accreditation remains in effect for 3 years and will expire in December 2024.  

 
The Town of Discovery Bay truly stands out as a district that has gone above and beyond. There are only 
nine other special districts in the state that currently hold District of Distinction - Platinum Level 
accreditation. This is a pretty high accomplishment since there are over 2,300 special districts in 
California. 

 
 

6



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for November 17, 2021 - Pg.3 

 

 
 

2. Monthly Water and Wastewater Report from Veolia – October 2021. 
Veolia Project Manager Anthony Harper reviewed the water and wastewater production for the month of 
October 2021. There were no reported accidents. No customer complaints to report. Water and 
wastewater samples continue to satisfy state requirements. Sixteen samples were collected, none of them 
were positive. Weekly safety trainings continue. A mock drill for earthquake evacuation was conducted at 
Plant #2 with contractors on site.  
 
PM Harper reported out that all wells are online and active. Willow Lake and Newport plants are active. 
All 15 lift stations are active with no SSOs to report. Wastewater Treatment Plant #1 remains offline. 
Wastewater Treatment Plant #2 is operational. No ongoing issues to report. All state mandated samples 
for Revised Total Coliform Rule are within limit.  Denitrification project is ongoing and Ox Ditch #2 is being 
built, concrete has been poured. District Office Staff took a tour of water and wastewater facilities and PM 
Harper encouraged all board members to come out and take a tour as well. 

 
F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 

1. Discussion and Possible Action Authorizing Harris and Associates, Inc., to Prepare the Environmental 
Documents for the Future Well 8 on Parcel C of the Pantages Subdivision in the Amount of $35,390 Plus 
15% for Contingencies.  
Presented by GM Breitstein on behalf of Mike Yeraka. 

 
The District reached out to multiple organizations, of which 2 provided quotes: Harris & Associates and 
Advision. Staff requests moving forward with recommended action to approve scope and budget 
contained in attachment from Harris & Associates proposal letter from 10/15/21 to perform environmental 
work in compliance with CEQA for future Well 8 and authorize GM to execute the Town’s standard Form 
and Consulting Agreement to perform the work in amount not to exceed $35,390 and to authorize $5,300 
in contingencies for the project. 

 
Motion made by Kevin Graves 
Second by Ashley Porter  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

 
2. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Proposals of Bids Received for the Installation of Synthetic 

Turf at the Community Center Swimming Pool.  
Presented by Bill Engelman, Parks and Landscape Manager. 

 
The initial rough estimate was obtained in March 2021 for $55,000 to convert landscaping adjacent to 
pool decking into synthetic turf. The Town sought bids in July 2021 and bids received were higher than 
anticipated at $113,692 and $166,667. Both bids were in excess of the budget. The Town went back to 
original firm who estimated the project at $55,000 and requested a new project estimate.  The project 
estimate increased to $85,000 due to increased labor and product costs.  Town staff revised the bid 
documents with a project estimate of $90,000.    

 
The Town rebid the project on 10/27 and received two bids: 
Silicon Valley Paving (original bidder at $55,000) $105,000 
McKnaff Construction bid $117,649 

 
Landscape manager Engelman explained to the Board that the synthetic turf is safe and does not contain 
lead in the product.  There is a presence of chemicals to make turf heat/grease resistant. Studies show 
that no crumb rubber is used in this product. We will use sand infill in lieu of crumb rubber. The end of life 
and recycle/reuse issues will use the turf to be repurposed in other landscape applications or can be used 
as a separation medium in landfills.  

 
Staff requests the recommended action to approve the lowest bid of $105,000 provided by Silicon Valley 
Paving for the installation of synthetic turf at Community Center. 
 
There was one Public Comment requesting to plant real grass 

      
Motion made by Kevin Graves 
Second by Ashley Porter 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

7



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for November 17, 2021 - Pg.4 

 

 
G. MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
H. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
I. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
J. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 

 
K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Director Callahan: Propose agenda item to discuss possibility of the BOD directing staff to work with legal to 
develop a ballot measure to impose term limits for Board of Directors. 

 
M.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 7:36 p.m. to the regular meeting on December 15, 2021, beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 

8



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

December 15, 2021 

 
Prepared By:   Julie Carter, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Dina Breitstein, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $ $1,327,901.90 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
  
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2021/2022 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: C-3 

9



          Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices

Anderson Pacific $613,829.96

Veolia Water North America $324,961.19

Pacific Gas & Electric $75,690.07

Herwit Engineering $55,194.94

Town of Discovery Bay CSD $41,004.08

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. $34,650.69

City Of Brentwood $25,871.41

Abacus Concrete $24,000.00

Adams Pool Solutions $17,999.50

Robert Half $14,134.82

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System $11,987.13

Luhdorff & Scalmanini $11,740.69

Brentwood Decorative Rock, Inc. $11,153.23

Tree West $8,625.00

Neumiller & Beardslee $7,987.38

County of Contra Costa Public Works Dept $7,549.92

San Joaquin County Office Of Ed $7,430.48

Freedom Mailing Service, Inc $6,493.08

BSK Associates $4,729.50

Bob Murray & Associates $3,019.50

Janitorial Plus $2,740.00

National Aquatic Services, Inc. $2,376.34

United States Treasury $1,959.97

Upper Case Printing, Inc. $1,435.50

Paul E. Vaz Trucking, Inc. $1,156.25

Simply Catered $1,109.06

Verizon Wireless $1,096.77

Univar Solutions USA Inc. $949.24

Kevin Graves $924.90

Mt Diablo Resource Recovery $825.49

Water Utility Refund Customer $648.63

Contra Costa Health Services $485.00

Streamline $480.00

Bryon Gutow $460.00

Office Depot $413.44

Ashley Porter $345.00

Carolyn Graham $345.00

Michael Callahan $345.00

Quadient Leasing USA, Inc. $302.26

Brentwood Ace Hardware $246.98

UniFirst Corporation $243.42

Discovery Pest Control $235.00

Geotab USA, Inc. $177.75

Alhambra $155.59

Denalect Alarm Company $111.00

Concentra $101.50

Core & Main LP $71.99

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec $59.25

Department of Justice $49.00

$1,327,901.90

                               For The Meeting On December 15, 2021
                             Town of Discovery Bay CSD

                             Fiscal Year 7/21 - 6/22

10



1564211-1 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

WHEREAS, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (the “Town”) is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Town’s legislative body are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, 
and watch the District’s legislative body conduct their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Town’s Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 2021-16 on 
October 20, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative body of the Town to 
conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of 
section 54953; and  

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the Board of 
Directors must make findings that the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency 
that exist in the Town, and that either the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the 
members to meet safely in person, or State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures 
to promote social distancing; and   

WHEREAS, the March 4, 2020, Governor proclaimed a State of Emergency continues to exist throughout 
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19; and   

WHEREAS, currently the dominant strain of COVID-19 in the country continues to be more 
transmissible than prior variants of the virus, may cause more severe illness, and that even fully 
vaccinated individuals can spread the virus to others resulting in rapid and alarming rates of COVID-19 
cases and hospitalizations, therefore, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety of attendees and members; and  

WHEREAS, the Cal-OSHA adopted emergency regulations (Section 3205) imposing requirements on 
California employers, including measures to promote social distancing remain in effect; and 

WHEREAS, the health orders issued by the Contra Costa County Health Officer recommending measures 
to preserve the public health, including indoor masking requirements, social distancing from non-
household members for vaccinated individuals that have been exposed to COVID-19, and measures 
acknowledging that close contact to other persons increases the risk of transmission, remain in effect.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2021-21 

11



1564211-1 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. State of Emergency. The Board of Directors hereby reconsiders the circumstances of the 
current State of Emergency proclaimed by the Governor on March 4, 2020, and find that the ongoing 
conditions of the State of Emergency directly impact the ability of members to meet safely in person. 

Section 3. Measures to Promote Social Distancing. The Board of Directors hereby finds that Cal-OSHA 
and the County Health Official continue to recommend measures to promote physical distancing. 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager of the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out 
the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public meetings in accordance 
with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

_________________________ 
Bryon Gutow 
Board President 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting, held on November 3, 
2021, by the following vote of the Board: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

________________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 

12



November 2021

Water and Waste Water Monthly Report 
Town of Discovery Bay

13



Weekly Safety Topics:

11/3 – Powered Industrial Trucks (Forklifts)

11/10 – Drinking Water Sampling 

11/24 – Thanksgiving Safety (Cautious Cooking & Fryer Tips)
VNA University: 
Cold Stress
Winter Safety 

Safe Work Days: 4,478

Safety & 
Training

14



Active

01
Active

02
Active

06

Active

04
Active 
(Emergency)

05
Active

07

Water Well
Status

Willow WTP

Newport WTP

15



.98

Production (MG)

809

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

Water Production 
& Chemicals 

Willow WTP

Newport WTP 1.30

Production (MG)

1,426

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

TOTAL 2.28

Production (MG)

2,235

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

16



Coliform Samples Collected: 25

Water 
Compliance

Coliform Positive Results: 0

Water Quality Complaints: 0

Hydrant Flushing: 0

Valve Exercising: 0

17



Active

C
Active

D
Active

E

Lift Station
Status

Active

A
Active

F

Active

H
Active

J
Active

R
Active

G
Active

S

Active

Lakeshore

Active

Lakes

Active

Lakes 4

Active

Newport

Active

Bixler

18



0

Total Flow (MG)

0

Polymer (gal)

Wastewater Flow 
& Chemicals 

WW Plant 1

WW Plant 2

0

Influent Flow avg. (MG)

0

Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

1.18

Total Flow (MG)

1.25 1.18

0

Alum (gal)

0

PAC (gal)

Influent Flow avg. (MG) Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

19



Effluent BOD5, mg/L < 10: 1.1

Wastewater
Compliance

Effluent TSS, mg/L < 10: 1.0

Total Coliform 7 day median < 23: ND

Total Coliform daily max < 240: ND

Eff NTU daily avg < 2: 0

Eff Ammonia (N), mg/L < 8.4: ND

Removal BOD5, monthly > 85%: 99.4%

Removal TTS, monthly > 85%: 99.6%

Conductivity annual avg < 2,400: 2,381

20



SSOs: 0

Maintenance
& Improvements 

Customer Inquires: 0

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

December 15, 2021 
 

 
Prepared By:      Dina Breitstein, General Manager  
Submitted By:    Dina Breitstein, General Manager  
  
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Sending a Board Member Representative to the Lakeshore Homeowners 
Association (HOA) Meeting on January 11, 2022.   
  
Recommended Action 
 
To designate a Board Member representative to attend the Lakeshore Homeowners Association meeting on January 11, 
2022. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
In November 2021, Director Graham reached out to the Lakeshore HOA representative to discuss having a Town of 
Discovery Bay Board of Director member attend one of their HOA meetings.  This is to make an effort to build a relationship 
and strengthen communications between the District and Lakeshore Housing Community, listen to areas of concern, and 
answer questions. 
 
The Lakeshore HOA responded and invited a Board Member representative to attend the January 11, 2022 meeting at 
7:30 PM.   
 
Staff is requesting the Board designate a Board Member representative to attend the Lakeshore Homeowners Association 
meeting on January 11, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
  
Attachments 
None. 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM:  E-1 

33



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

December 15, 2021 

 
Prepared By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager 
Submitted By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager   
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Caltrans’ Proposed Striping Plan for the Intersection of Highway #4 and 
Discovery Bay Blvd. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Review Caltrans’ proposed striping plan for the intersection of Highway #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd. and provide feedback 
to staff for forwarding to Caltrans. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
On June 16, 2021, Town staff requested a meeting with Caltrans to ask for a “second look” at traffic safety options at the 
intersection of Highway #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd (“Intersection”).   On November 22, 2021, a video meeting took place 
with Caltrans to discuss options for possible Intersection improvements.  
 
On December 6, 2021, Caltrans provided a proposed striping plan (attached).  In summary, the plan will eliminate the 
Intersection’s current delineators and striping.  It is proposed that the W/B Highway #4 right-turn-only lane, east of the 
Intersection, be changed to allow thru traffic and right turns.  This means that traffic coming W/B from Stockton will have 
two lanes of travel that can proceed through the Intersection.  No other changes are proposed.  S/B Discovery Bay Blvd. 
traffic can still turn right (W/B) on a red light at the Intersection.   
 
The proposed striping plan shows the striping on both sides of the intersection and the removal of the channelizers in the 
middle of the intersection.  Caltrans states the merging length west of the Intersection is 600’ which is standard for the 
posted speed limit of 55 mph.   
 
Staff has no objections to Caltrans’ proposed solution as a reasonable alternative to the existing conditions at the 
Intersection. 
 
Staff is requesting Board feedback for forwarding to Caltrans.  The Intersection configuration is in the jurisdiction of Caltrans, 
and it is ultimately their decision.   
 
 
 
 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
  
Attachments 
  
Proposed Striping Plan for the Intersection of Hwy #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd. 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: E-2 

34



1 
 

 

 

CC-4-PM 46.46 intersection with Discovery Bay Blvd. 

Proposed Improvements: 
1. Remove all painted islands and channelizers/delineator in the intersection area 
2. Remove existing Detail 37B and 38 striping, 4 Type III (R) arrows, “RIGHT TURN ONLY” pavement markings on #2 lane of 

WB Route 4, install Detail 12 lane line and two Type II (R), and install shoulder striping Detail 27B and 39A as shown  
3. Remove existing W74 (CA) “Thru Traffic Merge Left” and R3-7 “Right Lane Must Turn Right 

35



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
"A Community Services District" 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 

December 15, 2021 

 

Prepared By:     Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
Agenda Title        
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Town of Discovery Bay Water System Emergency Response Plan (ERP). 
  
Recommended Action  
Adopt and Certify the Town of Discovery Bay ERP and authorize the submittal of the ERP to the California State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Division of Drinking Water (DDW), and to America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA). 
  
Executive Summary   
Purpose: 
 
In California, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Division of Drinking Water (DDW), is the Drinking 
Water Primary Agency for all public water systems serving over 200 service connections. The Discovery Bay Public 
Water System's primary agency is the SWRCB DDW.  
 
One of the operational requirements for a public water system is to "provide a reliable and adequate supply of pure, 
wholesome, healthful and potable water" (CA Health & Safety Code, Section 11655), and Emergency Response 
Planning for both terrorist and natural disasters is an essential part of ensuring customers receive a reliable and 
adequate supply of potable water.  
 
On October 23, 2018, America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) was signed into law. AWIA Section 2013 requires 
community (drinking) water systems serving more than 3,300 people to develop or update risk assessments and 
emergency response plans (ERPs). The law specifies the components that the risk assessments and ERPs must 
address and establishes deadlines by which water systems must certify to EPA completion of the risk assessment and 
ERP.  

The Town of Discovery Bay ERP utilized the State of California's template and direction in preparing this ERP plan. 
 
The next step in the process is to certify the submission of the ERP to the California State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB), Division of Drinking Water (DDW), and to America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA), by December 31, 2021.   
 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt and certify the Town of Discovery Bay ERP and authorize the submittal of the 
ERP to the California State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Division of Drinking Water (DDW), and to America's 
Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA). 
  
Fiscal Impact:   
Amount Requested:  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:   
Prog/Fund #   Category:         
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item: 
 
Attachments:  List the attachment: 
The Town of Discovery Bay Emergency Response Plan (ERP). 
  

 
AGENDA ITEM: E-3 

36



Page 0 of 132 

 
 

Town of Discovery Bay  
Public Water System No. CA0710009 

Emergency Response Plan 

October 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Operated by Veolia North America, LLC  

Town of Discovery Bay 

1800 Willow Lake Drive 

Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

(925) 634-1131 

Veolia North America 

Site: 17501 Highway 4  

Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

(925) 634-8818 

Veolia North America, LLC 

53 State Street, 14th Floor 

Boston, MA 02109 

(617) 849-6600           Revised November 2021 

37



Page 1 of 132 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

38



Page 2 of 132 

 
 

 

Emergency Response Plan 

Section Subsection Title Page # 

  Table of Contents 2 

Section 1  Introduction  

 1.1 Purpose  

 1.2 Emergency Response Plan Requirements  

 1.3 ERP in Conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay  

 1.4 Emergency Operations Center (EOC) for Town of Discovery Bay  

    

Section 2  Emergency Planning  6 

 2.1 General Information  

 2.2 Disaster Event Scenarios  

 2.2.1 Natural Disaster  

 2.2.2 Events Caused by Human-Intervention  

 2.3 Department of Homeland Security - National Terrorism Advisory System  

    

Section 3  Water System Information 22 

 3.1 Water System Information  

 3.2 General System Maps/Service Area Map  

 3.3 Emergency Resources  

 3.4 Estimated Emergency Supply of Water  

    

Section 4  SEMS/ICS Integration or Organization  24 

 4.1 Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS)   

 4.2 Five Levels of SEMS  

 4.3 Five  Principles Functions of SEMS  

 4.4 Water Utility Emergency Operations Center  

Section 5  - Not applicable (Redacted)  

    

Section 6  Communication Procedures 30 

 6.1 Water System Chain-of-Command  

 6.2 Drinking Water Field of Operations Branch - Chain of Command  

 6.3 External Notification Procedures  

 6.3.1 Initial Notifications  

 6.4 Public Notice Procedures  

 6.5 Cancellation of Public Notification  

 6.6 Water Quality Sampling  

    

Section 7  Restoration & Recovery 40 

 7.1 Restoration and Recovery  

    

Section 8  Emergency Response Training 44 

 8.1 Periodic Training  

    

Section 9  Definitions/Acronyms & Appendix 46 

 9.1 Definitions and Acronyms  

39



Page 3 of 132 

 
 

 9.2 Appendix  50 

9.2 A  Chain of Command and Contact Information  

  i Town of Discovery Bay  

  ii Veolia North America Discovery Bay Site  

 iii Structure of Chain of Command per Water System ERP  

    

9.2 B  Additional Contacts 54 

  i Local and Public Response Agencies  

  ii Additional Agencies  

 iii Critical Suppliers & Vendors  

  iv County and State Agencies  

    

9.2 C  Maps 60 

  i Aerial Map of Town  

 ii Drinking Water and Sanitary Sewer System  

 iii Customer Area Plots and Addresses  

 iv Sampling Stations  

 v Service Area and Pipelines  

    

9.2 D  Emergency Notifications BWN, UWA, Cancellation Forms 66 

 i Emergency Notification Plan  

 ii First Responders Contact Information  

 iii Contra Costa Disaster Preparedness Services Contact Information  

 iv Boil Water Notice, Cancellation and Advisory Guide (English)  

 v Boil Water Notice, Cancellation and Advisory Guide (Spanish)  

 vi Unsafe Water Alert (English)  

 vii Unsafe Water Alert (Spanish)  

    

9.2 E  Critical Facilities and Assets Information 96 

 i Groundwater Wells  

 ii Water Treatment Plants  

 iii Inspection Forms (After an Emergency)  

    

9.2 F  Emergency Water Quality Sampling Kit 116 

 9.2 F i List of Kit Contents  

    

9.2 G  Critical Suppliers Emergency Vendors 118 

 i Contact Information  

    

9.2 H  Vulnerability Assessment 120 

 i Table 11: Countermeasures and Brief Description of Risk Reduction  

    

9.2 I  Water System Details 124 

 i Details from CA Drinking Water Watch (current)  

    

9.2 J  Water Treatment Operations Plan 126 

 i Overview  

 ii Raw Water Production  

40



Page 4 of 132 

 
 

 iii Disinfection  

 iv Disinfection Process Troubleshooting Guide  

 v Filtration, Backwash and Recycle  

 vi Filtration, Backwash, and Recycle Process Troubleshooting Guide  

 vii Storage and Distribution   

 viii Storage and Distribution Process Troubleshooting Guide  

    

9.2 K  Locations of PPE, Disaster Kit, Vehicles/ Equipment 136 

 i PPE, First Aid, Disaster Kit Locations  

 ii Veolia Vehicles  

 iii TODB Vehicles  

 iv Portable Generators  

 v Heavy Equipment / Other  

    

9.3  Record of Changes and Reviews 140 

 

 

  

41



Page 5 of 132 

 
 

Section 1 Introduction 

 

1.1 Purpose 

In California the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Division of Drinking Water (DDW) is the Drinking Water 

Primacy Agency for all public water systems serving over 200 service connections. The Discovery Bay Public Water 

System’s the primacy agency is the SWRCB DDW.  

One of the operational requirements for a public water system is to “provide a reliable and adequate supply of pure, 

wholesome, healthful and potable water” (CA Health & Safety Code, Section 11655), and Emergency Response Planning 

for both terrorist and natural disasters is an essential part of ensuring customers receive a reliable and adequate supply 

of potable water. 

 

1.2 Emergency Response Plan Requirements  

There are several regulations associated with the legal requirements of preparing an Emergency Response Plan (ERP) in 

California, which are described below: 

1. California Government Code Section 8607.2 - Public Water System Plans 

“Requires public water systems with 10,000 or more service connections (approximately 33,000 population) to 

review and revise their disaster preparedness plans in conjunction with related agencies, including fire 

departments.” 

“Also requires water systems with 10,000 or more service connections to furnish the Legislature with an 

assessment of their emergency response.” 

2. United States Public Law 107-188 Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002 

“All community water systems serving more than 3,000 population (1,000 service connections) shall prepare or 

revise an Emergency Response Plan that incorporates the results of vulnerability assessments (VA) that have 

been completed. The updated Emergency Response Plan shall be certified to EPA within 6 months of completing 

the vulnerability assessment.” 

Directions on how to submit the VA and ERP Certification to EPA are provided on EPA’s website at:  

3. California Health and Safety Code, Sections 116460, 116555 and 116750. Please refer to the current edition of the 

California Safe Drinking Water Act and Related Laws for the specific language. 

 Section 116460 - Emergency Notification Plan Requirement 

 Section 116555 - Operational Requirements 

 Section 116750 - Tampering with Public Water Systems 

 

4. California Waterworks Standards, Section 64560. 

Documentation demonstrating that a well site control zone with a 50ft radius around the site can be established 

for protecting the source from vandalism, tampering, or other threats at the site by water system ownership, 

easement, zoning, lease, or an alternative approach approved by the Department based on its potential 

effectiveness in providing protection of the source from contamination.  

42



Page 6 of 132 

 
 

1.3 Emergency Response Plan in Conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay 

This Emergency Response Plan is to be used in conjunction with the Town of Discovery Bay’s Emergency 

Operations Plan, as amended. This document is a detailed guide that serves as the basis for effective responses 

to emergencies and hazards that threaten the jurisdiction. This ERP is an expanded step-by-step procedure and 

must be followed in the correct order of events, if it is safe to do so. This will ensure that immediate needs are 

addressed first and facilitate an efficient response to an emergency or disaster. Refer to the separate document: 

Quick Guide Emergency Response Plan for immediate and concise steps.  

A copy of this ERP is located in the Administration Office, and additional copies have been distributed to our key 

staff (Project Manager, Operations Supervisor, and Maintenance Supervisor).  

 

1.4 Emergency Operations Center (EOC) for Town of Discovery Bay 

The Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will be activated at Town of Discovery Bay District Offices at  

1800 Willow Lake Road unless otherwise directed. The EOC shall only be activated in the event that it is safe and 

does not pose a threat to the safety and welfare of Disaster Services Workers. In the event that the EOC is not 

available for use, an alternate location will be identified by the Town of Discovery Bay’s General Manager in 

pursuant to the best available and safe location.  

The EOC serves as the central point for information gathering, processing, and dissemination; coordination of all 

Town emergency operations, and coordination with other agencies and the Operational Area EOC. The EOC is 

partially or fully activated by the Director of Emergency Services, according to the requirements of the event.  

 

 

  

43



Page 7 of 132 

 
 

Section 2 Emergency Planning Process 

 

2.1 General Information 

The following public response agencies are for Town of Discovery Bay Public Water System CA0710009: 

Public Response Agencies 

Local Emergency Management Agency: (916) 206-1470 CAL OES Costal Region II Mutual Aid  

Local Fire Department: (925) 757-1303 ECCFPD Bixler Station 59 Dispatch  

Local Law Enforcement: (925) 646-2441 CCC Sheriff’s Department Delta Station 

Local Health or Environmental Health Department: (925) 692-8510 CCC Health Department 

  

Public Works Department: (925) 313-2000 CCC Public Works  

Local Hazardous Materials Response Team: (925) 335-3232 CCC HAZMAT Emergency 24hr Line  

Private and Public Health Laboratories:  

(209) 942-0181 FGL Fruit Growers Lab,   

(925) 828-6226 Alpha Analytical Lab 

(510) 412-2331 Region 9 Bay Delta Richmond Lab 

SWRCB DDW (State Drinking Water Primacy Agency): (510) 622-2300 California Water Boards San Francisco Region 2 

Regional Water Quality Control Board: (916) 341-5250 State Water Quality Control Board (SWQCB) 

Emergency Relief:  (415) 427-8000 American Red Cross Northern California Coastal Region (San Francisco) 

Additional Organizations: located in Discovery Bay utility’s service area involved in preparing for or responding to  

emergencies and disasters: 

(925) 228-5000 - CCC Office of Emergency Service  

(916) 845-8510 - California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services CAL EMA  

(925) 313-9622 - Community Warning System 

(800) 621-3362  - FEMA 

(800) 913-9106 - AMR Ambulance Services 

(925) 933-1313 - Paramedics/Emergency Medical Services 

(800) 743-5000 - PG&E Emergency Line 

(925) 308-8111 - John Muir Brentwood 2400 Balfour Road (10 miles) Emergency Room 

(925) 813-3100 - Kaiser Antioch 4501 Sand Creek Road (15 miles) Emergency Room 

(925) 370-5000 - CCC Medical Center 

(925) 634-6911 - Brentwood Police Department 9100 Brentwood Boulevard (7 miles) 

(925) 646-4980 - California Highway Patrol (CHP) 

(925) 646-2800 - Contra Costa Psychiatric Emergency Martinez 2400 Alhambra Avenue (38 miles) 

 

Sandbag Stations:  

Byron Airport 500 Eagle Court, Byron CA (9 miles) 

Knightsen Farm Bureau 3020 2nd Street, Knightsen CA (10 miles) 

44



Page 8 of 132 

 
 

  

In California, public emergency response agencies are required to utilize the Standardized Emergency Management 

System (SEMS) to mitigate disasters or emergency incidents. A component of SEMS is the Incident Command System 

(ICS), which is implemented to manage resources in the field during an event.  

Discussions with response agencies should include: the role of water utility staff, in the field, under the Incident 

Command structure; the relationship and communication methods between field activities and any activations or 

preventative measures taken by the water utility’s Emergency Operations Center (EOC) or Water Utility Emergency 

Response Manager (WUERM). These items are detailed later in this ERP in SECTION 4.  

 

2.2 Disaster Events or Scenarios 

A water system may be vulnerable to many natural and manmade disasters or emergency events See Appendix H. An 

efficient basic emergency disaster plan should be the foundation of the response to all hazards that may be 

encountered.  

Reference Quick Guide for immediate response steps. The needs of the incident should drive the level of response 

required to mitigate the problem. Analyzing the impacts of an earthquake, flood, or fire may be important because they 

have occurred recently in California and will likely reoccur in the near future. Consider the probability of an event and its 

likely effect on the water system. Then focus on the actions needed to reduce impacts and respond in a timely and 

effective manner.  

Likelihood of Occurrence & Severity: 

HAZARD Occurrence: Infrequent, Sometimes, Frequent Severity: Low, Moderate, High 
Levee Failure Infrequent High 

Earthquake less than 5 Mag. Sometimes Low 

Earthquake more than 5 Mag. Infrequent Moderate to High  

Wildfire Infrequent Low to Moderate 

Severe Storms Frequent Low, Moderate or High  

Localized Flooding Sometimes Low to Moderate 

HAZMAT/Chemical Release Infrequent Low to Moderate 

Civil Disturbance Infrequent Low 

Aircraft Crash Sometimes Low, Moderate or High 

Major Vehicle Accident Frequent Low to Moderate  

Terrorism Infrequent Low, Moderate or High 

  

2.2.1 Natural Disasters 

Consideration of common natural disasters when developing this emergency response plan, include: 

Wildfires:  

During late spring through fall, wildfires pose a significant threat to large rural areas in California. These fires can cause 

damage to infrastructure as well as watershed areas within the stare. Consider possible low pressure problems or water 

outages due to fires within or surrounding the water system service area.  

BACKGROUND: 
Fire hazards present a considerable problem to vegetation and wildlife habitats throughout the County. Grassland fires are easily ignited, particularly in the dry 

seasons, with extensive drought. These fires are relatively easily controlled if they can be reached by fire equipment; the burned slopes, however, are highly subject 

to erosion and gullying. While brush lands are naturally adapted to frequent light fires, fire protection in recent decades has resulted in heavy fuel accumulation on 

the ground. Brush fires, particularly near the end of the dry season, tend to burn fast and very hot, threatening homes in the area and leading to serious destruction 

45



Page 9 of 132 

 
 

of vegetative cover. While woodland fires are relatively cool under natural conditions, a brush fire which spreads to a woodland could generate a destructive hot 

crown fire. No suitable management technique of moderate cost has been devised to reduce the risk of brush fires.  

Because the natural vegetation and dry-farmed grain areas of the County are extremely flammable during the late summer and fall, wildfire is a serious hazard in 

undeveloped areas and large lot home sites with extensive areas of un-irrigated vegetation. Several factors affect the relative degree of wildfire hazard, including 

atmospheric humidity, slope steepness, vegetation type, exposure to sun, wind speed and direction, accessibility to human activities and accessibility to firefighting 

equipment. Taking these factors into consideration, a fire hazard severity scale has been devised which characterizes areas throughout the County by the number of 

days of moderate, high and extreme fire hazard. 

Peat fires represent a special hazard in that once ignited, they are extremely difficult to extinguish. In some instances, islands have been flooded in order to 

extinguish peat fires. Any area lying generally east of the mean high water line may be peaty due to the marshy origin of the soil, although local areas of mineral soil 

are present within the general area.  

In conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay ERP:  

In the event of a wildfire, building fire, or ground fire the following steps should be taken: 

If a person is on fire: Stop, Drop & Roll. 

1. Call the Fire Department immediately (dial 911). Do not assume that District personnel can control the fire. 

Fire Departments would rather respond to a fire that is extinguished than to get the call after a fire is out of  

control. Assign an employee to meet the Fire Department at the main entrance to direct them to the fire. 

2. Evacuate all personnel from affected buildings/areas, working from involved area, outward.  

  

3. If safe to do so, use facility fire extinguishers to extinguish or control the fire. The extinguishers on site are 

Class A.B.C. for wood/paper, liquids, and electrical fired. DO NOT USE WATER on electrical, solvent, or  

chemical fires. WATER CAN BE USED ON grass/ground fires.  

  

4. If a fire is in a High Risk area such as a flammables storage areas, if it is safe to do so, shut all doors and  

windows upon exiting the building and call 911. If there is a grass/ground fire, an immediate danger is smoke 

inhalation. Re-entry onto the property will not be permitted until it is declared safe to do so by the  

local Fire/Law enforcement officials.  

There are several areas throughout the facility and office that have an increased threat level of explosion. These are 

flammable storage areas, and diesel/gas storage tanks. In the event of any type of explosion use the following steps:  

1. Call the Fire Department Immediately (dial 911). 

2. Evacuate the immediate area.  

3. Rendezvous at the main office or shop and perform the standard headcount procedure to determine if 

any personnel are missing. Begin search & rescue if safely possible.  

4. When calling the Fire Department, give them as much information as possible. The following should be included: 

  a. Fire Location. 

  b. Fire and or explosion type: 

   i. Building involved. 

   ii. Chemical storage area. 

   iii. Flammables storage area. 

   iv. Any known toxic releases (ex: chlorine). 

 

46



Page 10 of 132 

 
 

Per Water System ERP Procedures: 

1. EOC staffing levels will vary with the complexity and needs of the Town’s response to the fire. At a minimum, 

the Director of Emergency Services and the Operations Section will likely be needed. 

2. Immediately establish a liaison with the Fire Department Commander (IC). 

3. Working through the Incident Command Post (ICP), determine the size of the involved area, both actual and potential. 

4. Working through the ICP, determine the apparent direction the fire is traveling and what lies in its path. 

5. If appropriate, the Director of Emergency Service could make a local Emergency Declaration.  

6. Obtain current and forecasted weather to project potential spread of the wildfire.  

7. Determine the need to conduct evacuations and sheltering activities. 

8. If evacuation is required, work with the General Manager and the County to distribute the information 

immediately. All evacuation activities should be coordinated throughout the Operations Section.  

9. As a point of reference, evacuation is the assisted removal of people before the threat arrives, while recue 

is an issue that deals with the removal of persons once the threat is upon them. 

10. Constantly be aware of the potential for toxic smoke or fumes. 

11. Maintain ingress & egress routes for emergency vehicles.  

12. Establish a perimeter control, keeping unauthorized vehicles and pedestrians out of the involved areas. 

13. Notify all EOC Sections, the Director of Emergency Services, supporting agencies, adjacent jurisdictions,  

and or any agency liaisons of situational changes. 

14. Determine the need for additional resources and request as necessary through the Logistics Section. 

15. If required, work with other agencies to establish a Joint Information Center (JIC) or coordinate with JICs 

established by other jurisdictions.  

16. Form emergency public information messages and media responses using “one message, many voices” concepts. 

17. Ensure that reports of injuries, deaths, and major equipment damage are communicated and coordinated with the 

Director of Emergency Services and the County prior to public dissemination. 

18. Activate and implement applicable mitigation plans, community recovery procedures, and Continuity of  

Operations Plan (if required) until normal daily operations can be completely restored.  

Earthquakes:  

Emergency response plans should evaluate what facilities are at risk during an earthquake and what can be done to 

mitigate impacts. System should look at historical earthquake damage reports for an idea of the severity and probability 

in their service area. Consider structural damage to roads, bridges, water treatment facilities, distribution system, power 

outages, and telemetry system and communication problems. 

BACKGROUND: 
Seismic risk is assumed by every occupant and developer in Contra Costa County because the County is within an area of high seismicity; the San Francisco Bay Region 

has been impacted by more than 10 severe earthquakes during historic time. The major effects of earthquakes are ground shaking and ground failure. Severe 

earthquakes are characteristically accompanied by surface faulting and less commonly by tsunamis and seiches. 

47



Page 11 of 132 

 
 

Flooding may also be triggered by dam or levee failure resulting from an earthquake, or by seismically-induced settlement or subsidence. All of these geologic effects 

are capable of causing property damage and risks to life and safety of persons.  

Historically, ground failure in its various forms, including liquefaction, has been a problem in areas of continually wet, unconsolidated geologic units. In Contra Costa 

County, the areas which are most susceptible to ground failure include geologically young sediments of the San Francisco Bay estuary, including the Delta Lowlands.  

Liquefaction presents the potential for the most serious consequences in the Delta. Several pre-development studies have confirmed that a high potential for 

liquefaction exists below levees and proposed developments. This potential presents the possibility that several failures can occur simultaneously on a single levee, 

possibly preventing access for repairs. Flooding of protected islands would then be unpreventable and would make emergency relief and later repair very difficult.  

In conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay ERP:  

The Town of Discovery Bay and adjacent communities have many earthquake faults throughout the area, such as the 

Concord Greenbelt Fault. This means that there is potential for an earthquake at any time. The degree of seriousness of 

any earthquake is unpredictable; therefore everyone should be aware of the correct response in order to reduce the risk 

of damage to persons and property. The following steps should be taken in the event of a noticeable earthquake 

(observed movement of building and or grounds): 

1. During the shaking: 

If you are already inside a building DO NOT go outside of the building unless the building itself poses a dangerous 

situation.  

Drop, Cover & Hold.  

2. After the shaking: 

Rendezvous at your work station (or outside of facility) and follow the step procedures in the Disaster Response Plan. 

NOTE: Aftershocks are common and can be as dangerous as the initial earthquake. STAY OUT of weakened structures, if 

the designated emergency station appears structurally damaged or unsound, the emergency coordinator should have an 

alternate building inspected and set up as the Emergency Operations Center (EOC).  

Per Water System ERP Procedures: 

 

Drop where you are, onto your hands and knees. This position protects you from being knocked down and also allows 

you low and crawl to shelter if nearby. 

Cover your head and neck with one arm and hand. 

If a sturdy table or desk is nearby, crawl underneath it for shelter, if no shelter is nearby, crawl next an interior wall 

(away from windows). Stay on your knees; bend over to protect vital organs. 

48



Page 12 of 132 

 
 

Hold until shaking stops. 

Under shelter: hold on to it with one hand, and be ready to move with your shelter if it shifts. 

No shelter: hold onto your head and neck with both arms and hands. 

1. Obtain a Shake Map from USGS website: earthquake.usgs.gov/earthquakes/eventpage/nc73640435/map 

to view the shaking intensity from the event.  

2. Determine the locations of structural damage. Attention should be focused on locations with potentially  

trapped people. 

3. Determine the status of transportation infrastructures such as CA Highway 4 East & Westbound and CA-4  

Old River Bridge. 

4. Determine the status of communications systems to include broadcast television and radio media. Hand 

crank radio is in Disaster Kit located in Women’s Restroom in Main Admin Building. 

5. Determine the locations of major firefighting efforts, both contained and uncontained.  

6. Determine the locations and severity of HAZMAT releases and the impact on the general public. 

7. Determine the operational capability and capacity of critical facilities:  

Town Community Center at 1601 Discovery Bay Blvd,  

Discovery Bay Elementary at 1700 Willow Lake Road,  

Willow Water Treatment Plant at 1800 Willow Lake Road,  

Newport Water Treatment Plant at 1800 Newport Drive,  

Wastewater Treatment Plant 2  at 17501 Highway 4, 

PG&E Electrical Substations: contact PG&E (800) 743-5000 

8. If evacuation is required, contact the Director of Emergency Services and Operations Section immediately. 

All evacuation activities should be coordinated throughout the Operations Section.  

9. Coordinate with the County EOC and the Red Cross, other public agencies and or non-profit agencies for  

shelter operations.  

10. Determine Public Safety needs: security, traffic control, and law enforcement needs. Communicate these 

to the County EOC. 

11. Work with the County to develop a system for building inspectors and structural engineers to inspect  

critical facilities.  

12. Work with the County to being the process for inspection of bridges and roadways. 

13. Remove critical equipment and supplies stored in damaged facilities to prevent further damage or  

deterioration due to aftershocks and or weather exposure.  

14. Continue to monitor USGS information about the earthquake such as magnitude, epicenter, and date & time  

of occurrence.  

15. Use Shake Map data to deploy to the areas with most serious damage. The emergency response focus  

should be on search & rescue, emergency medical response, sheltering for injured and displaced persons,  

and the prioritization of bridges, roadways, and other critical facilities.  

49



Page 13 of 132 

 
 

16. Obtain a status report of critical facilities that may have been damaged, then direct emergency personnel to  

those areas as needed.  

Major earthquakes may have the most widespread impact on the Town than any other emergency.  

17. Obtain status report on nearby highways and roads. Develop a consistent plan for the flow of traffic. Ensure 

adequate ingress & egress for emergency vehicles. 

18. Initiate a Critical Facilities log that indicates which of those facilities have been checked and their disposition. 

Refer to APPENDIX E iii for Forms.  

19. Be prepared to inform PG&E of any known electrical or gas complications. 

20. Be prepared to inform the County on water and wastewater system damage. 

21. In the event of a significant aftershock, repeat the above steps.  

Floods/Levee and or Dam Failures:  

Floods can cause widespread contamination as turbid waters carry bacteria that can overflow sources, transmission 

lines, treatment facilities, and pumping facilities. Floods can also ruin electrical components and telemetry systems. 

Consider damage to roads and bridges where distribution or transmission lines are located.  

BACKGROUND: 
Substantial areas within Contra Costa County are subject to flooding. The majority of the County’s creeks and shoreline areas lie within the flood plain. In the East 

County area, substantial acreage lies within the flood plain, including our surrounding areas of Bethel Island, the Veale Tract, Holland Tract, Franks Tract, Jersey 

Island, and the area of Byron vicinity. Portions of Pittsburg, Antioch and Brentwood areas, as well as a number of creeks in East County, are also subject to flooding.  

The most serious flood hazard that exists in Contra Costa County relates to the system of levees that protect the islands and adjacent mainland in the San Joaquin-

Sacramento River Delta area in Eastern Contra Costa. Levee failure occurs in some areas where levees rest on soft mud, silt or peat. Flooding problems in the Delta 

area have also been exacerbated by boat movement (primarily recreational) on the waterways which causes waves to accelerate the natural process of levee erosion.  

The possibility that flooding will occur on the islands in the Delta is greatly increased by two ongoing natural processes, the rising sea level and ground subsidence, 

which compound the dangers that periodic high tides or strong winter storms may breach portions of the existing levee system.  

In conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay ERP and Water System ERP Procedures: 

1. Major Equipment Submersion 

a. If flood levels increase that major equipment, especially motors and other electrical components may become 

submerged and become damaged, begin sandbagging and or use auxiliary pumps to prevent damage. 

b. If any motors, electrical outlets, etc. are already submerged ASSUME THAT THE AFFECTED AREA IS HOT. Shut off all 

affected equipment at the MAIN BREAKERS and LOTO.  

c. Check the flooded area for electrical hazards - after checking for any potential electrical hazards, enter the area 

wearing RUBBER BOOTS.  

 

2. Chemical & Fuel Storage Areas 

a. Most storage areas in the facilities would not be affected by flooded conditions as they are stored in above ground 

water tight tanks and or containers. 

b. In the event that a facility becomes flooded and chemicals are on the floor wear protective gear (boots and rubber 

gloves) as many of the concentrated acids and caustics are clear liquids and could be mistaken for water. 

3. Pumping Stations  

To reduce unsafe conditions caused by raw sewage spills and overflows: 

50



Page 14 of 132 

 
 

PUT ALL AVAILABLE PUMPS ON HAND / FULL SPEED. If possible bring in auxiliary pumps.  

NOTIFY: 

(925) 634-2351 Reclamation 800 Water District  

(707) 576-2220 Raw Sewage Spills  

Severe Weather & High Winds:  

In conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay ERP: 

In the event of high winds and or severe weather conditions, stay indoors and monitor weather reports.  

In the event of power failure, backup generators will activate and operate critical facilities. It may be necessary to roll 

out portable generators to facilities requiring power such as lift stations and wells. 

NOTE: If powerlines are down STAY AWAY. Call 911 and report immediately to PG&E. Assume no one has called. 

During thunderstorm activity, the safest place to be is in a building away from windows and metal objects. Do not use 

land lines during this time as lightning may cause injury through wired phone lines.  

If you are driving during heavy thunderstorm conditions, stay in your vehicle. Do not attempt to drive across roadways 

that appear to be flooded.  

If directed to do so, assist First Responders as necessary. 

Situations of heavy rain may burden the community’s storm drain system. Contact the County Office of Emergency 

Services at (925) 646-4461 or by dialing 911.  

Per Water System ERP Procedures: 

1. Coordinate with the National Weather Service for timely watches and warnings affecting the area. 

2. Stay in contact with Contra Costa County EOC for updated flood information.  

3. Ensure public is well informed regarding both storm and flooding watches and warnings. 

4. Obtain status report on nearby highways and roads. Develop a consistent plan for the flow of traffic. Ensure adequate 

traffic control is in place to assist emergency vehicles with ingress & egress to incident scenes. 

5. Determine the need to conduct evacuations and sheltering activities.  

6. If evacuation is required, work with the General Manager and the County to distribute the information immediately. 

All evacuation activities should be coordinated throughout the Operations Section.  

7. Coordinate with local broadcast media to ensure timely and accurate Emergency Alert System activation.  

8. As a point of reference, evacuation is the assisted removal of people before a threat arrives, while rescue is an issue 

that deals with the removal of persons once the threat is upon them.  

9. Ensure that field personnel are checking for downed powerlines and inform PG&E immediately to prevent 

electrocution hazards.  

10. Coordinate with PG&E to share information concerning power outages. 

51



Page 15 of 132 

 
 

11. Floodwaters may carry additional health and safety risks, such as bacteria, raw sewage or hazardous substances. 

Sandbags tend to act as sponges for these hidden dangers, so ensure precautions are taken when handling them or 

coming into contact with the water itself.  

12. Ensure field personnel watch potable water treatment facility tanks, wastewater treatment plant storage facilities 

for inundation or overflow.  

13. Coordinate with schools, daycare centers etc. about proper precautions and emergency actions related to the storm.  

14. Determine the availability of shelters through the County and the American Red Cross.  

15. Coordinate with the County, the Red Cross, other public agencies and or non-profit agencies for shelter operations.  

Drought:  

Droughts are an issue in California and can have devastating effects on water supplies. During normal years, peak 

summer demands can double and even triple water use. These same demands during low water system years can lead 

to water shortages which can cause low pressure problems, boil-water advisories and possible need for hauled water 

will be addressed when event occurs. 

 

2.2.2 Events Caused by Human-Intervention 

Human-caused events that can result in a water system emergency include chemical spills, vandalism, terrorism, cyber-

attacks, fires, construction accidents, and basic neglect of water system infrastructure and maintenance.  

Vandalism:  

Vandalism is generally a spur-of-the-moment act using materials at hand rather than a preplanned or premeditated 

activities. Vandals often break into systems, damage facilities and paint graffiti. These acts are relatively easy to prevent 

by enhancing security, increasing lighting, installing locks on doors and hatches, and putting up security fencing. This is a 

listed recommendation in the Vulnerability Assessment Table 11 (2021) Appendix I.  

Terrorism:  

Acts of terrorism are defined by Code of Federal Regulations as “….the unlawful use of force and violence against 

persons or property to intimidate or coerce a government, the civilian population, or any segment thereof, in 

furtherance of political or social objectives.” There are many potential threats to drinking water systems, including 

physical destruction of infrastructure (explosions), chemical, biological or radiological contaminations as well as other 

physical types of damage to the infrastructure and SCADA systems. Threats of, or contamination using biological, 

radiological, or chemical agents are a major concern for a drinking water system. 

BACKGROUND:  
According to the FEMA publication Principal Threats Facing Communities and Local Emergency Management Coordinators, most terrorist activities are bombing 

attacks. Principal targets include military personnel and facilities, commercial establishments, and federal government buildings and property.However, based on 

events surrounding September 11, 2001, there is an increasing threat of Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD) incidents, including Nuclear, Biological, and Chemical 

attacks against civilian targets. The degree of seriousness of any act of terrorism is unpredictable; therefore everyone should be aware of the correct response in 

order to reduce the risk of injuries.  

In conjunction with the Town of Discovery Bay and Water System ERP: 

1. If directed to do so, assist First Responders as necessary.  

52



Page 16 of 132 

 
 

2. Contact the County Office of Emergency Services at 911 or by calling (925) 646-4461. 

System Neglect:  

System neglect, often referred to as deferred maintenance, is a major cause of emergencies. System components that 

are aging and need replacement go without attention causing an emergency situation. Drinking water systems need to 

continuously evaluate infrastructure and replace them before failure occurs. Following the preventative maintenance 

schedules in the program Job+, these situations can be averted, along with work order write ups for system components 

that have prospective need for repairs and or replacements.  

Water System Contamination Situations: 

BACKGROUND:  
Organisms such as Giardia and Cryptosporidium can contaminate water supplies and causes waterborne diseases. The 1993 Milwaukee, Wisconsin Cryptosporidium 

outbreak killed more than 100 people and sickened more than 400,000. Additionally, another incident occurred in 2000 at Walkerton, Ontario where an E. coli 

outbreak killed 6 people and sickened over 2,300.  

1. Cross Connections  

A cross connection is an actual or potential physical connection between a public water system and any source of 

recycled water, non-potable liquid, solid or gas that could potentially contaminate water supply through a backflow 

process. Cross connections usually occur unknowingly when someone makes a connection in the system or when 

conducting maintenance on the system.  

2. Backflow Conditions  

Backflow is the reverse flow of water or other substances into the public water system. Under backflow conditions, 

unprotected cross-connections can provide a path for biological, chemical or physical contaminations to enter the water 

supply. These contaminations can lead to waterborne disease outbreaks and chemical poisonings Backflow usually 

occurs when there is a loss of pressure somewhere in the system causing water to reverse itself. 

3. Construction Accidents 

Construction accidents sometime fall into the category of a routine operating emergency. The system may lose pressure, 

resulting in serious backflow incidents that contaminate the water. The utility must be aware of construction in and 

around the system and be prepared to respond quickly to an accident if it happens.  

In conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay ERP for Conditions Listed Above: 

Along with immediately notifying proper agencies such as Law Enforcement, the County, and or HAZMAT and working 

through the EOC and the Incident Command Post (ICP):  

1. Identify location and source of contamination and determine the size of the area, both actual and potential. 

2. If contamination is from the water system source, isolate and treat source. 

3. If contamination is an act of sabotage, vandalism, or an act of terrorism, immediately contact local Law Enforcement 

and regulatory agency SWRCB Division of Drinking Water. Actions should be taken in consultation with the regulatory 

agency and could include shutting off water until all contaminants are identified. 

For contamination from Cross Connections and Backflow Incidents: 

1. If preventative measures fail and a backflow contamination even occurs: 

a. Respond by limiting the damage and remove the contaminant from the system if possible. 

b. When contamination area is found, isolate that portion of the system to prevent spreading. 

53



Page 17 of 132 

 
 

c. Take measures to shut off valves surrounding the contaminated area from the start point where contamination was 

reported and work outward until edge of contaminated area is found. 

2. Begin procedures for notifying customers. 

a. If a contamination event has occurred, and was unable to be isolated before reaching customers, all customers served 

by the Water System must be notified. The type of notification depends on the contaminant and the size of the area 

contaminated.  

Corrective Measures to Restore Normal Operations of Water System: 

1. System Flushing and Cleaning 

a. Once a contamination event has occurred, been identified, and isolated, begin procedures for flushing the system as a 

first attempt to remove the contaminant.  

b. Flush by opening hydrants and expelling water from the system using wide open valve approach until the 

contaminant can no longer be detected. 

c. If a large area has been affected, several hydrants may need to be opened in succession to clean the system, generally 

moving from the source of contamination in the downstream direction. 

d. If the source of contamination is not found and fixed, there is a possibility of a repeat incident.  

2. Pipeline Replacement when Necessary 

a. Certain types of contaminants may not be removed by physical cleaning.  

b. Formulate plan to isolate, remove and replace affected pipelines. 

NOTE: Radioactive materials are also difficult to remove physically as they can irradiate pipe materials. Other 

contaminants such as highly corrosive or explosive contaminants may cause damage to the system, along with some 

pesticides that can be absorbed into pipeline materials and release at a slow rate. In these cases, systems may choose to 

replace the contaminated piping and other appurtenances.  

Chemical Spills (HAZMAT):  

Many chemicals that are routinely transported can harm humans directly or indirectly by contaminating air or water. 

Spills can come from motor vehicles, trains, airplanes, boats, or fixed containers. They can occur at any time without 

warning, and many solvents are able to leach into PVC pipes.  

BACKGROUND: 
Contra Costa County began planning specifically for the management of hazardous materials and waste in 1983, with the establishment of the County Hazardous 

Waste Task Force. The County has completed the County Hazardous Waste Management Plan, a comprehensive analysis of all aspects of hazardous waste 

management from generation through disposal. The management of hazardous materials is the focus of the Contra Costa County Hazardous Materials Area Plan, 

which was adopted in January of 1988. This Plan outlines procedures that County regulatory and response agencies will use for managing, monitoring, containing, and 

removing hazardous materials from the site of an actual or threatened accidental release. The plan also identifies the agencies within the County responsible for the 

effective management of hazardous materials.  

In conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay ERP: 

In the event of a chemical spill, hazardous materials breach, or accident involving the release of a hazardous material, 

immediately call 911. East Contra Costa County Fire Protection and Contra Costa County HAZMAT will respond and 

provide immediate control of the incident.  

54



Page 18 of 132 

 
 

The 24 hour hotline number for HAZMAT emergencies only is (925) 665-3232. Do not attempt to resolve the situation. 

Hazardous materials and chemicals are extremely dangerous, which cause life threatening conditions, and can be 

extremely flammable, threatening structures and facilities. 

If you are in the immediate vicinity of a hazardous materials or chemical spill incident, immediately Shelter in Place, and 

wait for further direction from First Responders. Immediately call 911. DO NOT assume someone else has already 

contacted emergency first responders. Procedure per Town of Discovery Bay: 

1. Immediately Shelter in Place and Call 911. 

2. When calling 911, provide as much information as possible, the following should be included: 

 a. Location of incident. 

 b. Type of incident, if known (vehicle accident, storage tank or tote leak/spill, etc.). 

 c. What location and where chemicals are stored. 

 d. What location and where flammable cabinets are. 

 e. Any known information about the chemical (NFPA data if known). 

Per Water System ERP Procedures: 

1. TODB EOC staffing levels vary with the complexity and needs of the Town’s response to a HAZMAT incident. At 

minimum, the Director of Emergency Services and the Operations Section will likely be needed. 

2. Immediately establish a liaison with the Fire District Incident Commander and or Law Enforcement IC. 

3. Working through the ICP, determine the size of the involved area, both actual and potential. 

4. Working through the ICP, determine the direction the plume (if one exists) is traveling and what lies in its path. 

5. Consider the potential side effects of weather such as wind, rain and heat.  

6. Be aware of sudden release of hazardous materials may allow little time for an organized response. Field personnel 

may take the action of locking down individuals or have them Shelter in Place. 

7. The Operations Section may assist field personnel on coordinating the evacuation of the affected area by appropriate 

routes. The Section may also assist field personnel in the coordination of setting up a perimeter to prevent entry to the 

hazardous area. 

8. Ensure that field personnel stay upwind, uphill and or upstream from the HAZMAT location and at a safe distance.  

9. To ensure the Director of Emergency Services and the Operational Section are aware of the material and what the 

incident involves, staff should consult the SDS Binder for specific warnings, cautions, and handling guidelines. 

10. If evacuation is required, work with the General Manager and the County to distribute the information immediately. 

All evacuation activities should be coordinated throughout the Operations Section. 

11. Coordinate with the County, the Red Cross, other public agencies and or non-profit agencies for shelter operations. 

12. As a point of reference, evacuation is the assisted removal of people before the threat arrives, while rescue is an 

issue that deals with removal of persons once the threat is upon them. 

13. Be aware that in the event that helicopters are required for medical evacuations, consider potential  

spreading effect of the rotor downdraft. If required, work with the IC to choose a remote landing area. 

14. The Operations Section Chief should remain aware of the HAZMAT cleanup status. 

55



Page 19 of 132 

 
 

15. If required, the Logistics Section may assist field personnel with obtaining equipment and personnel 

to deal with emergency debris clearance.  

16. If required, work with other agencies to establish a Joint Information Center (JIC) or coordinate with JICs 

established by other jurisdictions.  

17. Form emergency public information messages and media responses using “one message, many voices” concept.  

18. Ensure that reports of injuries, deaths, and major equipment damage due to a HAZMAT incident are communicated 

and coordinated with the Director of Emergency Services and the County prior to public dissemination. 

Power Outages:  

In recent years, the constant supply of electrical power for all facilities, in California and the Nation, has posed problems 

that should be considered in emergency planning. As noted, in the recent power failure on the east coast in August of 

2003, many areas were without electricity for several days before it was restored. Alternate and backup power 

generation should be considered in emergency planning scenarios. 

Per Water System ERP Procedures: 

Newport and Willow Water Treatment Plants have stationary generators that have required PM schedules in order to 

maintain the system in the event of a power outage.  

1. Obtain an outage map from PG&E website at pgealerts.alerts.pge.com and check affected area for Outage Status and 

Estimated Restoration ETA.  

1. Make sure emergency generators are online to provide minimum water pressure to the system. 

2. Mobilize and hook up portable generators critical equipment as directed. 

 

2.3 The National Terrorism Advisory System 

The National Terrorism Advisory System or NTAS, replaces the color-coded Homeland Security Advisory System. This 

new system will more effectively communicate information about terrorist threats by providing timely, detailed 

information to the public, government agencies, first responders, airports and other transmission hubs, and the private 

sector.  

It recognizes the Americans all share responsibility for the nation’s security, and should always be aware of the 

heightened risk of terrorist attack in the United States and what they should do.  

A description and details about the NTAS can be found on their webpage.  

 

 

 

 

  

56



Page 20 of 132 

 
 

Section 3 Emergency Planning Process 

 

3.1 Water System Information 

In an emergency situation, both the water system and SWRCB DDW staff need to have basic information readily 

available. The information should be clear and concise. The basic information should include: system’s ID number 

system address and location, population served, number of service connections, source type, and treatment provided, 

available storage and emergency contact numbers. These are listed below in Table 3.1. 

 

3.2 General System Map/Service Area Map 

The water system should have detailed drawings of the sources, water treatment plants, booster stations and 

distribution system. In the event of an emergency, it will be necessary to quickly locate sources and distribution system 

characteristics. Maps that include the distribution system, system valves and sources are provided in Appendix C.  

 

3.3 Emergency Resources 

In an event of a natural or man-made disaster, it may be necessary for the water system to use an emergency source of 

supply to maintain system pressure. The water system and SWRCB will work together to approve emergency sources 

and conduct minimum water quality sampling and appropriate public notification prior to using the source during an 

emergency as advised.  

 

3.4 Estimated Emergency Supply of Water 

The water system’s estimated amount of storage available under worse case conditions is approximately 2,050,000 

gallons between both Newport and Willow Water Treatment Plants.  

Table 3.1 Water System Information 

System Identification No. CA0710009 

System Name and Address 
Town of Discovery Bay Public Water System 
1800 Willow Lake Road 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

Directions to System Office 
From Highway 4, turn onto Discovery Bay Blvd. Turn East on Willow Lakes Road. Turn North 
and continue past the Elementary School. 

Number of Service Connections 
Connections/Population Served 

6,157 connections 16,790 population 

Type of Source 6 Ground Water Wells 2 Ground Water Treatment Plants 

Type of Treatment Provided Iron and manganese removal &Sodium hypochlorite disinfection.  

Number of Storage Tanks 2 Backwash Tanks w/ recycle  4 Treated Water Tanks 

Average Water Demand 2.0 MGD 

Maximum and Peak Water Demand 6,400 GPM Maximum 2.5 MGD Peak 

Emergency Contact Person(s) 

Project Manager COIC Anthony Harper 

Operations Supervisor Jeffrey Dobretz 

Maintenance Supervisor  Craig Shields  

57



Page 21 of 132 

 
 

 

 

Section 4 SEMS/ICS Integration or Organization 

 

The Governor’s Office of Emergency Services webpage contains a document “Emergency Planning Guidance for Public 

and Private Water Utilities” which describes most of the following information in more detail. The information in this 

section has been summarized and/or enhanced to assist water systems.  

4.1 Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) 

The standardized Emergency Management System is the system required by Government Code §8607 (a) for managing 

response to multi-agency and multi-jurisdiction emergencies in California. Local public agencies (cities, counties, special 

districts) must use SEMS to be eligible for State funding of certain response-related personnel costs resulting from a 

disaster. State agencies are required by the law to utilize SEMS during emergencies. 

 

4.2 Five Levels of SEMS 

There are five designated levels in the SEMS organization. When resources become depleted or are not available at the 

field or local level, requests for resources are moved up through these levels until they are filled. The type and severity 

of the incident determines the extent of activation for each level.  

1. Field Response - The Field Response Level is where the Incident Command System is applied. At this level, emergency 

response personnel and resources are managed under ICS to carry out tactical decisions and activities in direct response 

to an incident or threat. The basic components of ICS are common terminology, modular organization, unified command 

structure, consolidated action plans, manageable span-of-control, predesignated incident facilities, comprehensive 

resource management, and integrated communications.   

2. Local Government - Local Government includes cities, counties, school districts, or special districts (including most 

water utilities).  

3. Operational Area - The Operational Area concept represents the intermediate level of the state’s emergency 

organization, consisting of county and all political subdivisions, including water districts and other special districts, 

within the county area.  

4. Regional - Because of its size and geography, the state of California has been divided into six mutual aid regions by the 

Governor’s Office of Emergency Services. In SEMS, the regional level manages and coordinates information and 

resources among operational areas and the state level. This water system’s region is San Francisco Region 2. 

5. State - The state level manages and coordinates state resources in response to the emergency needs of the other 

levels. This level manages and coordinates mutual aid among the mutual air regions and between the regional and state 

levels. The state level also serves as the coordination and communication link between the state and federal disaster 

response system.  

Water System Personnel may function in the ICS structure (Field Level) as an Agency Representative or 

Technical Specialist: 

58



Page 22 of 132 

 
 

Agency Representative - is an individual assigned to an incident from an assisting or cooperating agency who has been 

delegated authority to make decisions on matters affection that agency’s participation at the incident. “Agency 

Representatives” report to the Liaison Officer or Incident Commander in the absence of the Liaison Officer. 

Technical Specialist - Certain incidents or events may require the use of “Technical Specialists” who have specialized 

knowledge and expertise. “Technical Specialists” may function within the Planning Section, or be assigned wherever 

their services are required.  

 

4.3 Five Principle Functions of SEMS 

There are 5 principle functions within SEMS at each of the 5 organizational levels. They are Management (“Command” 

at Field Level), Operations, Planning/Intelligence, Logistics, and Finance/Administration. A general principle in the use 

of the 5 functions, is that no one person should directly supervise more than 5-7 staff. As they relate to the Water 

Systems Operations during an emergency, these functions are listed below: 

1. Management - The Operations Section is responsible for the management of all operations directly applicable to 

primary mission established for the response. The Operations Section Chief activates and supervises organization 

elements in accordance with the Incident Action Plan and directs its execution.  

Operations Section staff include field coordinators as necessary, linked to water personnel at other fixed facilities or 

assigned to incidents within the water utility. The field coordinator should receive and pass information up the chain of 

command, as well as, receive and coordinate requests for services and support.  

2. Planning/Intelligence - Oversees the collection, evaluation, verification, and display of current information related to 

the emergency. This section is also responsible for preparing action plans and maintaining documentation related to the 

emergency. The information collected is needed to 1) understand current situation 2) predict probable course of the 

incident events 3) prepare alternative strategies and control operations for the incident.  

3. Logistics - Provides facilities, services and material in support of the Incident. Oversees the acquisition, storing, and 

distribution of essential resources and support services needed to manage the emergency. It tracks the status of 

resources. Logistics provides services to all field units in terms of obtaining and meeting their personnel, materials and 

equipment needs including communications.  

4. Finance/Administration - The Finance/Administration Section is responsible for all financial, administrative and cost 

analysis aspects of the incident. Finance/Administration prepares vendor contracts, maintains records of expenditures 

for personnel and equipment, and maintains records and processes claims. It also provides preliminary estimates of 

damage costs and losses. 

5a. General Staff - Each function listed above should have a delegated Chief to manage the Section. Depending on the 

nature and scope of the emergency each Section can have several branches, divisions, groups, or units. 

5b. Command Staff - These positions report directly to and are directly subordinate to the Incident Commander or EOC 

Director. They are the Public Information, Liaison and Safety Officers.  

 

4.4 Water Utility Emergency Operations Center 

The Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will be activated at the Town of Discovery Bay District Offices (unless otherwise 

directed) at: 

59



Page 23 of 132 

 
 

1800 Willow Lake Road 

Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

The EOC shall only be activated in the event it is safe and does not pose a threat to the safety and welfare of Disaster 

Services Workers. In the event the EOC is not available for use, an alternate location shall be identified by the General 

Manager pursuant to the best available and safe location. 

The EOC serves as the central point for information gathering, processing, and dissemination; coordination of all Town 

emergency operations, and coordination with other agencies and the Operational Area EOC. The EOC is partially or fully 

activated by the Director of Emergency Services, according to the requirements of the situation.  

 

Section Leader Assignments 
Section Primary Alternate 

Incident Manager 
General Manager  

or WUERM 
Chief Engineer 

Operations 
Water Quality/District Superintendent 

or WUERM 
Field Maintenance Superintendent 

Planning/Assessment Head of Engineering Services Principle Engineer 

Logistics/Resources 
Assistant Field Maintenance 

Superintendent 
Field Supervisor 

Administration Admin Manager Accounting 
Personnel Administrator  

or Human Resources  

 

Command Staff Primary Alternative  

Public Information Public Education Coordinator Customer Service Admin 

Advisory Support Safety Coordinator Assistant Safety Coordinator 

 

Water Utilities may be required to assign staff to the City or County (Operational Area) Emergency Operations Center 

(EOC) to coordinate with Pubic Health or any of the Sections that might need information or assistance. Typically, Water 

Utility Staff would report to the ROC as an Agency Representative and can move down, in the organization, to any of the 

sections as needed. Initially, the Water Utility Agency Representative would check in with the Liaison Officer, if one is 

not present then they would report to the EOC Director.  

 

 

 

  

60



Page 24 of 132 

 
 

Section 6 Communication Procedures 

 

Good communication is vital to effective emergency response. When an emergency occurs, panic, confusion and fear 

start to take over and poor communication can quickly make the situation worse.  Normal communication with wireless 

communication and system operations via SCADA systems may be out of service during an emergency or terrorist 

activities. Backup or alternative communication procedures should be evaluated and exercised.  

During water system emergencies there are several agencies that need to be notified and consulted. Some notifications 

are initially made while other notifications are not made until later or depending on the emergency, not at all. It is 

important for the water utility to have a clear understanding of who from their agency makes the appropriate contacts 

to County, State or Federal Agencies. 

6.1 Water System Chain-of-Command  

First of all, the water system must identify the lines of authority or the water system chain-of-command. A key element 

of the Incident Command System (ICS) is having a chain of command that identifies system personnel and their 

responsibilities in an emergency. 

A lead person should be identified that will have the responsibility and authority for managing the utility’s response to 

an emergency. Using the same terminology as the EPA, this lead person may be referred to as the Water Utility 

Emergency Response Manager or WUERM.  

Below is the table identifies the Water System Chain of Command.  

Since this list has many contact names and phone numbers, this information should be reviewed annually to ensure that 

current information is provided. See Appendix A. 

 

Table 6.1 Water System Chain of Command Flow Chart 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



Page 25 of 132 

 
 

6.2 Drinking Water Field Operations Branch Chain-of-Command 

The primary contact for the water system during any emergency is their District Engineer. Water systems should 

contact their District Engineer in the event of any emergency. From the district engineer, authority moves up the line to 

the Regional Engineer, Branch Chiefs, Assistant Division Chief, to finally the Chief of the Division.  

 

6.3 External Notification Procedures 

During an emergency it is important to contact and notify all the appropriate agencies and stakeholders that will be 

affected by the emergency. Some agencies will need to be notified immediately while some others may be needed later 

in the incident, depending on the event. The following is a list of agencies and stakeholders that a water system should 

have updated contact information. This information should be reviewed annually to ensure that current information is 

provided.  

This initial notification response to any emergency should be to call 911 for the needed first responder and then the 

SWRCB DDW. The SWRCB DDW is the Drinking Water Primacy Agency in California and has regulatory jurisdiction over 

all public water systems in the state. 

Contact to the SWRBC DDW should be their District Engineer. If the water system is unable to contact the District 

Engineer (or one of their staff), the water system should use the California Office of Emergency Services (OES) 

Warning Center Phone Number: 1-800-852-7550, which is a 24/7 phone number. A second phone number for the OES 

Warning Center is 916-845-8911. A duty officer will answer the CA OES Warning Center phone call, request for the 

SWRCB DDW duty officer. The SWRCB DDW duty officer will then call management staff in the Drinking Water Program 

to respond to the emergency.  

 

6.3.1 Initial Notifications 

All phone numbers are listed at the end of this section in Table 6.3.1.  

1. First Responders 911  

If the situation is an emergency that needs response from local fire, law enforcement, medical or hazardous materials 

(HAZMAT), calling 911 should be the first immediate call.  

a. Local Police and Sheriffs  

b. Fire and HAZMAT  

2. State of California Agencies 

a. Drinking Water Primacy Agency - The SWRCB DDW is California Water Boards San Francisco Region 2. If no one is 

available, do not leave a message, instead call the California State Warning Center at 800-852-7550. 

b. Depending on the magnitude of the event, the following state agencies may also need to be contacted  

(see table 6.3.1): 

i. Office of Emergency Services (OES) Warning Control Center 

ii. Department of Water Resources (DWR) 

62



Page 26 of 132 

 
 

iii. Department of Fish & Wildlife 

iv. Regional Water Quality Control Board  

v. Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) 

vi. California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) 

3. Federal Agencies 

a. Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) - If the event is a known terrorist incident or a direct written or phone threat 

against a water system, the FBI is to be contacted as soon as possible.  

This water system’s office is: San Francisco - 415-553-7400 

b. USEPA - The US Environmental Protection Agency Drinking Water Program is not a direct response agency. USEPA 

through its Superfund Response Program has emergency response resources for incidents related to environmental 

chemical releases. These resources are not first response resources and should be requested through SEMS process. 

4. Local County Health Department 

County Health Department - The County Public Health Officer is responsible for all public health issues within their 

county. They should be notified of any event that could affect public health within their county. In the event of an 

emergency that will require financial and technical assistance through CA Mutual Aide System, the County Public 

Health Officer will be one of the officials that can declare a State of Emergency and request assistance from the 

Regional and State OES. The County Public Health Officer also will have access to disease surveillance data within the 

county. If you cannot reach the County Health Officer, contact your District Engineer. 

4. Local Agencies & Facilities 

a. County and State Offices of Emergency Services - The County and State Offices of Emergency Services (OES) provide 

support and coordination of resources during an emergency. If additional or specialized resources are needed during an 

emergency, OES will dispatch those resources to the emergency. 

b. Hospital and Critical Care Facilities - An emergency or contamination event in the water system can affect the 

operations of facilities. See Appendix D for this system’s contact information. 

c. Customers - The Water Quality Emergency Notification Plan (WQENP), as required under Section 116460, California 

Health and Safety Code, is a significant part of a water system plan to communicate with their customers. The form that 

contains specific information for the SWRCB District Engineer and the County. Contact your District Engineer for current 

WQENP form.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Page 27 of 132 

 
 

 

 

Table 6.3.1  

Organization Contact Contact Numbers 

Police, Fire, HAZMAT  

Call 911 
925-646-2441 BPD - CCC Sheriff’s Delta Station 
925-757-1303 ECCFD - Dispatch 
925-335-3232 HAZMAT 24hr Emergency 

SWRCB District Engineer 

If they cannot be reached, call the CA Warning 
Center’s 24/7 number and ask for SWRCB Duty 
Officer. The manager will be contacted. 
 

510-620-3454 Day 
510-421-8382 Evening 

FBI Regional Office Regional FBI Office San Francisco  415-553-7400 

County Public Health Officer Contra Costa County 925-957-5403 

County OES LEPC Region 2 - CAL OES Liaison (Fairfield, CA) 831-444-1351 

CA OES (State OES) 
Warning Center 
Ask for SWRCB Duty Officer for Drinking Water 
Program 

800-852-7550  
707-862-2358  
916-657-9494 Public Safety Communications  
916-845-8911 California State Warning Center 

Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Region 2 - San Francisco Regional Water Quality 
Control Board  

510-622-2300 

CA Department of Fish and Wildlife Region 3 - Bay Delta  707-428-2002 

Water Quality Laboratory US EPA Region 9 - (Richmond, CA) 510-412-2331 

 

 

6.4 Public Notice Procedures 

Standard public notifications for a water outage/low pressure problems, Boil Water Notice (BWN), Unsafe Water Alert 

(UWA), have been developed by SWRCB for use during an emergency. Water systems need to have copies of public 

notices in the appropriate languages used in their service areas. See Appendix D. 

All public notifications (BWN, UWA, Do Not Drink or Do Not Use Notices) should be coordinated with the AWRCB 

District Engineer, County Environmental Health Department and the County Health Officer prior to issuing a public 

notice. However, any one of the three agencies should act immediately to issue a BWN or UWA, if delays will 

64



Page 28 of 132 

 
 

jeopardize public health and safety. The SWRCB District Engineer OR the water system must notify the County Health 

Department and the County Health Officer prior to or immediately after issuing a public notice.  

Notice must be given to a person, a message left on voicemail is NOT sufficient. The SWRCB DDW District Engineer will 

notify the two CDPH agencies of the BWN/UWA issued. 

Consumer Alert during Water Outages or Periods of Low Pressure - If a water system is experiencing power outages, 

water outages, or low pressure problems, a consumer alert may be issued to the public. The notice provides consumers 

information on conserving water and how to treat the water with household bleach if the water quality is questionable. 

See Appendix D.  

Boil Water Notice (BWN)  

A BWN should be issued when minimum bacteriological water quality standards cannot be reasonably assured. To 

assure public health protection a BWN should be issued as soon as it is concluded by the designated personnel that the 

water supply is or may be biologically unsafe.  

Unsafe Water Alert (UWA)/Do Not Drink  

In the event a water quality emergency due to known or suspected chemical (non-bacteriological) contaminations to a 

water system a UWA or Do Not Drink should be issued. Water should not be used for drinking and cooking, but may be 

used for sanitation purposes.  

In the event a known or suspected contamination event to a water system, where the contaminate may be chemical, 

biological or radiological a UWA or Do Not Use should be issued. Water should not be used for drinking, cooking, or 

sanitation purposes. Examples of these situations is: Known or suspected widespread chemical or hazardous 

contamination in water supply distribution, including but not limited to terrorism contamination event. 

The water system Public Information Officer (PIO) will need to coordinate with all the other agencies PIOs. If more than 

one agency is involved in an emergency, a Joint Information Center (JIC) will be established.  

If a BWN or UWA is issued, the water system should notify the PIOs in the EOC immediately.  

Media Notification 

Any dealing with the media during an emergency should come from one unified source: the EOC. Boil Water Notices, 

Unsafe Water Alerts, and other public notices can be distributed through the media. This is only effective if the 

information is coordinated through one source and one message is delivered to the public. 

 

6.5 Cancellation of Public Notification 

Once a BWN/UWA is issued, the only agency that can rescind the public notice is the drinking water primacy agency. 

SWRCB DDW will not lift the BWN until two rounds, collected a day apart, of coliform bacteria samples have been 

analyzed and the results are negative. The two sets of sample results should be faxed to the SWRCB DDW District Office 

for final approval before rescinding the BWN. Special chemical sampling will be required to rescind an UWA, please 

contact the SWRCB DDW District Office to determine required sampling. 

6.6 Water Quality Sampling 

Note: Laboratory protocols and procedures identified in section 6.6 are still under development by Federal and State 

agencies. This section will continue to evolve and updates will be provided as necessary. 

65



Page 29 of 132 

 
 

During an emergency, there are several types of water quality sampling that may need to be analyzed depending on the 

actual event. If it is natural disaster, flood or power outage, sampling will probably only include bacteriological samples, 

turbidity, and chlorine residual samples. However, if the event is a terrorist act or contamination event, the sampling will 

include a full scan of Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD) chemical, radiological and microbiological (unless the actual 

contaminant used is known). 

Laboratory Resources 

There are four different types or ownership of laboratory facilities in California that can analyze drinking water samples: 

1. Commercial/private laboratories 

2. County Public Health Laboratories 

3. State Department of Public Health Laboratories 

4. Research Facility/Specialty Laboratories 

In general, laboratories are grouped into two broad categories: chemical or biological.  

Chemical laboratories include: general environmental chemistry laboratories, radiological laboratories, and specialty 

laboratories that may be able to handle and analyze exotic contaminants, such as chemical weapons and radionuclides. 

Biological laboratories include: environmental microbiology laboratories and Laboratory Response Network (LRN) that 

typically analyze clinical samples for pathogens and select biotoxins. 

CDPH Laboratory 

The CDPH Drinking Water and Radiation Laboratory (DWRL) is organized within the CDPH. DWRL is the State’s primary 

drinking water quality testing laboratory and is the State laboratory capable of measuring environmental radiation. Its 

primary mission is to provide analytical services, reference measurements and technical support pertaining to the 

State’s Drinking Water Radiological Health Programs. 

DWRL is located in Richmond, California and performs microbiological, inorganic and organic testing in various water 

matrices, carries out inorganic and organic analyses in water, and radiochemical testing in various environmental 

matrices in addition to water. The DWRL in conjunction with the CDPH Microbial Disease Laboratory (MDL) does 

microbiological analyses including biotoxins. 

California Mutual Aid Laboratory Network (CAMAL Net) 

The CDPH DWRL, in conjunction with water utilities, USEPA Region 9 laboratory in Richmond, Lawrence Livermore 

National Laboratory, and the California Department of Water Resources, have formed a laboratory network, CAMAL Net, 

to address laboratory capacity issues associated with possible drinking water related contamination events. CAMAL Net 

establishes a triage system to process samples when water systems or commercial laboratory methods are not available 

or the water system lacks capacity within their own lab.  

 

The CAMAL Net system will not handle any samples where field screening indicates that the sample may contain a 

CDC listed WMD agent. Any requests for analysis through CAMAL Net system needs to be approved by the SWRCB 

DDW District Engineer prior to collection of water quality samples to be processed. 

Chemical Analysis Classification - The SWRCB along with its stakeholders and federal partners developed an algorithm 

to assist California water systems, public health agencies, law enforcement, and first responders with the identification 

of possible chemical agents in drinking water contamination events.  

66



Page 30 of 132 

 
 

Biological Analysis Classification - The LRN for Bioterrorism has ranked laboratories (Level A, B, C or D) based on the 

type of safety procedures they practice. 

Level A Lab uses a Class II biosafety (BSL) cabinet. Level A Labs are used to rule out and forward organisms 

Level B Lab is a BSL-2 + BSL-3 safety practices. Level B Labs are used for limited confirmation and transport 

Level C Lab is a BSL-3 facility. Level C Labs are used for molecular assays and reference capacity 

Level D Lab is a BSL-4 facility. Level D Labs are used for the highest level of characterization 

In California there are 28 Level A Labs, 10 Level B Labs, and 2 Level C Labs.  

The two Level C laboratories are the LA County Public Health Laboratory, Los Angeles, CA and the CDOH MDL in is 

located in Richmond, CA. Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory is also a Level C laboratory, but access to them is 

restricted.  

The only Level D laboratories available in the LRN are the national laboratories, such as those at the Center of Disease 

Control and Prevention (CDC) and the Department of Defense. These laboratories test and characterize samples that 

pose challenges beyond the capabilities of the Level A, B and C reference labs, and provide support for other LRN 

members during a serious outbreak or terrorism event. The most dangerous or perplexing pathogens are handled only 

at the Bio-Safety Level 4 laboratories at CDC and USAMRIID: US Army Medical Research Institute of Infectious Diseases.  

Natural Disaster 

During a natural disaster, flood, earthquake, fire etc., sample collection and analysis will be available to the water 

system by their normal laboratory resources. Sampling will primarily consist of regulatory bacteriological samples and 

turbidity to show that the system has been flushed out. The water system may also be collecting chlorine residual 

samples throughout the system with field chlorine test kit. 

Terrorist Event/Contamination Event 

Once a threat warning has occurred and the utility has deemed the threat confirmed, it will be necessary to collect 

water quality samples. The decisions made from the time of the threat warning to the time the threat is confirmed is 

specific to each individual event. This “credibility stage “ may take a utility between 2 to 8 hours and should involve 

consultation with local first responders, SWRCB DDW (Drinking Water Primacy Agency), local Health Department and 

regional FBI office. 

Assuming the threat is confirmed and credible enough to warrant water quality sampling, several state and federal 

agencies are involved to collect samples, transport the samples to appropriate laboratory and analyze the samples.  

The water system’s first step in this process is to contact the SWRCB District Engineer so they can notify the CDPH 

DWRL of the incoming samples. The following steps are described in more detail below: 

1. Emergency Water Quality Sampling Kit 

Contains sample bottles needed for chemical, radiological and microbiological analysis (that could be split into 3 

complete sample sets). The CAMAL Net version of the sample kit has been finalized for deployment. This kit will 

continue to evolve as the USEPA develops sampling protocols for these new constituents in drinking water. A complete 

list of the CAMAL Net version of the EWQSK is provided in Appendix F. The EWQSK should remain sealed before the 

sample is collected.  

SWRCB DDW purchased the supplies used to create enough EWQSK to supply 3 in each DDW District Office. The DDW 

will provide one of these kits in the event of an emergency. Requests for these kits should be made to the District 

67



Page 31 of 132 

 
 

Engineer when the water system reports the incident. Travel time from the District Office to the water system should 

be incorporated in the water system’s emergency response plan. 

 

2. Sample Collection 

Several types of samples may need to be collected depending on the event. The FBI will collect samples for the crime 

scene investigation. The water system needs to collect samples for public health to determine if the water is safe for 

consumption using the EWQSK for public health. The Department does not recommend that water system staff collect 

samples for the EWQSK due to liability issues. Several responding agencies are available for EWQSK sample collection: 

local HAZMAT, FBI, California National Guard Civilian Support Team (CST) or USEPA. Each agency has the proper personal 

protection material to minimize exposure to any possible agent. In addition, each agency has field screening kits that will 

provide a preliminary screen for several WMD agents that will help identify the required laboratory resources needed.  

3. Laboratory 

Depending on the results of the field screening and actual event, the required laboratories need to be notified and 

prepare to accept the samples. If an EWQSK (supplied by the water system or SWRCB DDW) is used, the CAMAL Net and 

the LRN need to be notified and involved in the process for laboratory selection. The first step in this process is for the 

District Engineer working with the water system to contact SRL.  

4. Sample Transport 

Depending on the responding agencies, field screening, the ICS will decide how the samples will be transported to the 

appropriate lab. Since the samples may be used for crime investigation, proper chain-of-custody must be maintained. 

The possible agencies and field screening, depending on the event are: HAZMAT, CHP, FBI, CST or USEPA. 

5. Sample Analysis 

Once the samples are delivered to the appropriate laboratory, they may be split for analysis to different laboratories. 

The transport and laboratory testing protocols will be handled by the CDPH DWRL laboratory. Sample results will be 

shared through the ICS. Please note that sample analysis may take days to weeks to complete depending on the 

complexity of analysis.  

 

68



Page 32 of 132 

 
 

Section 7 Restoration and Recovery  

 

7.1 Restoration and Recovery 

The Restoration and Recovery Plan’s key elements are the following: 

1. Return to Service 

a. Level of quality return 

b. Criteria 

2. Treatment Options 

a. Technologies applicable 

b. Change in existing treatment 

c. Onsite treatment options 

d. Monitoring 

e. Staff safety 

f. Human and environmental impacts 

3. Disposal Options 

a. Human and environmental impacts 

b. Pretreatment requirements: 

 i. Technologies 

 ii. Equipment and supplies 

 iii. Personnel 

 iv. Power requirements 

c. Approval/Permitting Requirements 

4. Rehabilitation Options 

a. Simple flushing 

b. Cleaning 

c. Disinfecting 

d. Swabbing and pigging 

e. Sandblasting 

f. Relining 

g. None-replacement 

h. Disposal 

i. Monitoring and analysis 

5. Public Information 

a. Information on progress to reduce panic 

b. May be difficult if threat still exists 

Initial Recovery Activities 

1. Designate a disaster recovery coordinator (may or may not be EOC director) and notify all appropriate regulatory 

agencies. 

2. Complete detailed evaluations of all affected water utility facilities and determine priorities for permanent repair, 

reconstruction, or replacement at existing or new locations. 

69



Page 33 of 132 

 
 

3. Begin repair activities design and make bids for contractor services. 

4. Make necessary repairs to system and un-tag repaired facilities and equipment. 

5. Restore all telecommunications, data processing, and similar services to full operation. 

6. Complete assessment of losses and costs for repair and replacement, determine approximate reimbursements from 

insurance and other resources of financial assistance, and determine how residual costs will be financed. 

7. Define needs for additional staff, initiate recruitment process, and adopt temporary emergency employment policies 

as necessary. 

8. Execute agreements with vendors to meet service and supply needs. 

9. Reevaluate need for maintaining the emergency management organization; consider returning to normal organization 

structure, roles, and responsibilities when feasible. 

10. Collect cost accounting information gathered during the emergency and prepare request for Emergency Disaster 

Funds (following FEMA and State EOS requirements). 

11. Debrief staff to enhance response efforts in the future by identifying lessons learned, developing action plans and 

follow-up mechanisms, and providing employee assistance programs if needed.  

21. Prepare After-Action Reports as required. Complete reports within six months of the event (90 days for public 

utilities which are part of a city or county government). 

Identify recommendations. 

Long Term Recovery Activities 

1. Initiate permanent reconstruction of damaged water utility facilities and systems. 

2. Restore water utility operations and services to full pre-event levels. 

3. Continue to maintain liaison as needed with external agencies. 

Assistance Programs 

The State of California Office of Emergency Services administers several programs designed to assist victims of a 

disaster. They include Public Assistance, Individual Assistance, and Hazard Mitigation Public Assistance (PA) administers 

state disaster relief programs under various federal laws and regulations, including the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 

and Emergency Assistance Act (Public Law 93-288 as amended), the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), and the State 

Administrative Manual. These regulations designate the State of California as “grantee” for all federal public assistance 

funding available to agencies of the state government, local governments, and certain private non-profit organizations 

that provide essential services of a governmental nature to the general public, including water utilities. As grantee, the 

state is responsible for the processing of sub-grants to public assistance applicants in accordance with 44 CFR, part 13, 

14 and 206, and its own policies procedures. PA works closely with the Federal Emergency Management Agency to 

process Damage Survey Reports. It dispatches inspection teams and conducts applicant briefings. This unit is led by OES, 

with support drawn from other state agencies. Under the Public Assistance Program, public and private non-profit water 

utilities may be eligible for public assistance to reimburse the work and associated costs of responding to and recovering 

from a disaster if the costs: 

1. Are a direct result of the declared event and not pre-disaster condition result of some other event. 

70



Page 34 of 132 

 
 

2. Are located within the area designated by FEMA as eligible for assistance. 

3. Are the legal responsibility of the eligible applicant. 

4. Are not eligible for assistance under another federal program (this applies to permanent restoration work only).  

Individual Assistance 

Individual Assistance (IA) performs a wide variety of functions and involves many state agencies to ensure individual, 

family, business, and farm recovery from disasters. Private, for profit water utilities may be eligible for disaster 

assistance in the form of low interest loans or grants to restore damaged structures, or replace inventories. Individual 

Assistance of this type is generally made available to private businesses when the ability to continue operations is 

terminated or impaired by a disaster. In addition, employees of a water utility may be eligible for disaster assistance in 

the form of funds for temporary housing, individual and family grants to meet disaster related expenses, and loans to 

individuals for repair or replacement of real and personal property. 

Hazard Mitigation 

Following a presidential disaster declaration, the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program is activated. The program’s purpose 

is to fund projects which are cost-effective and which substantially reduce risk of future damage, hardship, loss or 

suffering from a major natural disaster. Virtually all types of hazard mitigation projects are eligible provided they benefit 

the declared disaster area and meet basic project eligibility requirements. Types of eligible projects will be identified 

from those mitigation measures identified in the State Hazard Mitigation Plan, hazard mitigation team reports, and issue 

unique to the disaster event. The priorities of funding will be established and the program administered by OES. 

Expenditure Documentation 

One of the critical aspects of any major emergency or disaster is collecting information on the costs related to response 

and recovery. The ability of the utility to recover costs or receive disaster assistance from the state and federal 

governments is predicated on its eligibility and ability to document its costs.  

 

  

71



Page 35 of 132 

 
 

 

 

Section 8 Training 

 

8.1 Water System Response Training 

The water system conducts annual emergency response preparedness training. All policies and implementations are 

covered, as well as toolbox talks throughout the year. All contacts are updated annually, and all mock drills are tested. 

New hires are trained on emergency response preparedness after hire date.  

Emergency equipment is tested, according to recommended Preventative Maintenance schedule, and mock drills are 

conducted in conjunction with Town of Discovery Bay personnel.     

  

72



Page 36 of 132 

 
 

 

Section 9 Appendix  
 

9.1 Definitions and Acronyms 

The definitions below are specific to California Emergency Response Plan Guidelines, however the SWRCB DDW has tried 

to coordinate terminology with standards used nationally. Where possible, definitions were provided by the USEPA: 

Agency Representative - is an individual assigned to an incident from an assisting or cooperating agency who has been delegated to 

make decisions on matters affecting that agency’s participation at the incident. “Agency Representatives” report to the Liaison 

Officer or Incident Commander in the absence of a Liaison Officer. 

Bioterrorism Act - Public Law 107-188 Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002. 

Civil Support Team (CST) - California National Guard Civilian Support Team, Two are located in California, 95th CST in Alameda, CA 

and the 9th CST in Los Alamitos, CA. 

SWRCB DDW - State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water has regulatory jurisdiction of all public drinking 

water systems in California. 

CAMAL Net - California Mutual Aid Laboratory Network. 

Chain of Command - Lines of Authority for an agency. 

District Engineer - Each public water system has a SWRCB DDW Senior Engineer assigned regulatory authority.  

Drinking Water Primacy Agency - The Agency that has primary enforcement responsibility for national drinking water standards, 

namely the Safe Drinking Water Act as amended. In California, the SWRCB, DDW is the Drinking Water Primacy Agency for all public 

water systems serving over 200 service connections. For systems under 200 service connections, drinking water primacy may have 

been delegated by SWRCB to the representative County Health or County Environmental Health Department. However, some 

counties in California have chosen not to regulate public water systems and the SWRCB DDW is the Drinking Water Primacy Agency 

for all public water systems in those respective counties.  

Emergency Operations Center (EOC) - Typically, a pre=designated facility established by an agency or jurisdiction to coordinate the 

overall agency or jurisdictional response and support to an emergency. However, the EOC may be located at any location based on 

the disaster event. 

Emergency Response Plan (ERP) - A document developed by the water system that describes the actions that the water system 

would take in the event of a natural disaster, contamination event or terrorist activity. 

Water Quality Emergency Notification Plan (WQENP) A two page document that lists the emergency contact phone numbers for 

the water system personnel and the SWRCB personnel. The WQENP also has a description of the public notification methods for the 

water system. 

Emergency Water Quality Sampling Kit (EWQSK) - During a credible threat, a water quality sampling kit to be used that contains 

sample bottles for chemical, radiological and microbiological analysis.  

Hazardous Materials Response Team (HAZMAT) - The acronym generally refers to a Hazardous Materials Response Team. A 

specially trained group of personnel that are equipped to deal with spills and releases of hazardous materials. A hazardous material 

is any substance or material that when release in an uncontrolled manner in sufficient quantities, poses a risk to public health, 

environment and/or property. In California, the minimum standards and types, for these teams, are discussed in the “Fire Service - 

Field Operations Guide (ICS-420-1)” manual. 

73



Page 37 of 132 

 
 

Incident Command System (ICS) - A standardized on-scene emergency management concept specifically designed to allow its users 

to adopt an integrated organizational structure equal to the complexity and demands of single or multiple incidents, without being 

hindered by jurisdictional boundaries.  

Incident Commander - The individual responsible for the management of all incident operations. 

Laboratory Response Network - A network of laboratories developed by the CDC, APHL, and FBU for the express purpose of dealing 

with bioterrorism threats, including pathogen and some biotoxins.  

Public Information Officer (PIO) - The individual responsible for interfacing with the public and media or with other agencies 

requiring information directly form the incident. Under the ICS, there is only one Public Information Officer per incident.  

Multi-jurisdiction Incident - An incident requiring action form multiple agencies that have a statutory responsibility for incident 

mitigation. In ICS, these incidents will be managed under Unified Command.  

Office of Emergency Services (OES) - The Governor’s Office of Emergency Services coordinates overall state agency response to 

major disasters in support of local government. The office is responsible for assuring the state’s readiness to respond to and recover 

from natural, manmade, and war-caused emergencies, and for assisting local governments in their emergency preparedness, 

response and recovery efforts. 

Security Breach - An unauthorized intrusion into a secured facility that may be discovered through direct observation, an alarm 

trigger, or signs of intrusion (e.g., cut locks, open doors, cut fences). A security breach is a type of threat warning.  

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) - The Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) is the system 

required by Government Code §8607(a) for managing response to multi-agency and multijurisdictional emergencies in California.  

Technical Specialist - Certain incidents or events may require the use of “Technical Specialists” who have specialized knowledge and 

expertise. “Technical Specialists” may function within the Planning Section, or be assigned wherever their services are required.  

Threat - An indication that a harmful incident, such as contamination of drinking water supply may have occurred. The threat may 

be direct, such as verbal or written threat, or circumstantial, such as a security breach or unusual water quality. 

Threat Evaluation Part of the threat management process in which all available and relevant information about the threat is 

evaluated to determine if the threat is ‘possible’ or ‘credible’, or if a contamination incident has been confirmed. This is an iterative 

process in which the threat evaluation is revised as additional information becomes available. The conclusions from the threat 

evaluation are considered when making response decisions. 

Unified Command - A unified team effort which allows all agencies with responsibility for the incident, either geographical or 

functional, to manage an incident by establishing a common set of incident objectives and strategies. This is accomplished without 

losing or abdicating agency authority, responsibility, or accountability.  

Vulnerability Assessment (VA) - A systematic process for evaluating the susceptibility of critical facilities to potential threats and 

identifying corrective actions that can reduce or mitigate the risk of serious consequences associated with these threats.  

Water Utility Emergency Response Manager (WUERM) The individual(s) within the drinking water utility management structure 

that has the responsibility and authority for managing certain aspects of the utility’s response to an emergency particularly during 

the initial stages of the response. The responsibilities and authority of the WUERM are defined by utility management and will likely 

vary based on the circumstances of a specific utility.  

  

74



Page 38 of 132 

 
 

 

9.2 Appendix 

9.2A - Chain of Command & Contact Information (section 6.1) 

i. Town of Discovery Bay  

 Employee Title EOC Assignment Phone Number 

1 
 
General Manager 
 

Director of Emergency Services 925-519-1763 

2 
 
Assistant General Manager 
 

Planning & Intelligence Chief 925-628-0796 

3 
 
Executive Assistant to GM 
 

Planning & Intelligence To be Assigned 

4 
 
Project Manager 
 

Planning & Intelligence 925-775-5028 

5 
 
Parks & Landscape Manager 
 

Logistics Chief 925-727-2167 

6 
 
Parks & Recreation Supervisor 
 

Logistics 925-408-7915 

7 
 
Finance Manager 
 

Finance & Administration Chief 925-783-1534 

8 
 
Accountant 
 

Finance & Administration To be Assigned 

9 
 
Office Assistant Cust. Serv. Rep B 
 

Administration 925-978-6732 

10 
 
Office Assistant Cust. Serv. Rep B  
 

Administration To be Assigned 

11 
 
Admin Assistant & Board Secretary 
 

Administration To be Assigned 

12 
 
Water/Wastewater Manager 
 

Operations Chief 925-775-5350 

13 
 
Water Service Technician II 
 

Operations 925-206-2274 

14 
 
Water Service Technician I 
 

Operations 925-204-4283 

15 
 
Parks/Landscape Maintenance Tech III 
 

Operations 925-350-1795 

75



Page 39 of 132 

 
 

16 
 
Parks/Landscape Maintenance Tech II 
 

Operations 925-481-1073 

17 
 
PG&E Emergency Liaison 
 

 925-459-8067 

 

 

 

 

 

ii. Veolia North America Discovery Bay Site 

 Employee Title EOC Assignment Phone Number 

1 
 
Project Manager  
 

WUERM 925-634-8818 

2 
 
Operations Supervisor  
 

Water System Operator 925-786-9131 

3 
 
O&M Tech II 
 

Plant Operations  925-895-5265 

4 
 
O&M Tech II 
 

Plant Operations 925-503-3055 

5 
 
O&M OIT 
 

Plant Operations 209-401-4298 

6 
 
Maintenance Supervisor 
 

Field & Maintenance Operations 209-278-8238 

7 
 
Maintenance Tech II 
 

Field Operations  925-481-1373 

8 
 
Maintenance Tech II 
 

Field Staff 925-308-3220 

9 
 
Maintenance Tech I 
 

Field Staff 925-418-9428 

10 
 
Assistant to Project Manager  
 

Administration 510-871-1068 

 

 

 

 

76



Page 40 of 132 

 
 

iii. Structure per Water System ERP Guidelines 

Name & Title Responsibilities During an Emergency Phone Number 

Water System Manager 
WUERM 

Overall Management and decision making for the water system. 
 
WUERM is lead of managing the emergency and contacting the regulatory 
agencies. 
 
WUERM contacts the public and news media. 
 
All communications to external parties are approved by the WUERM. 

925-634-1131 Office Primary 
925-634-8818 Office Secondary 

Water System & WTP Operator 

In charge of operating the water system. Performs inspections, 
maintenance, sampling of the system and relaying critical information to 
the WUERM. 
 
Assess facilities, and provides recommendations to WUERM. 
 
In charge of running water treatment plant. 
 
Performs inspections, maintenance, sampling of the WTP and relaying 
critical information to the WUERM. 
 
Assess WTP facilities and treatment provided and provides 
recommendations to the WUERM. 
 
In charge of collecting samples, having samples analyzed by certified labs, 
receiving the results.  
 
Determines the quality of water being served meets all drinking water and 
public health requirements. 

925-634-8818 Office 
925-786-9131 Cell 

Office Administrator 

Responsible for administrative functions in the office. 
 
Receives customer phone calls and maintains a log of complaint calls.  
 
In an emergency, could provide a standard carefully pre-scripted message 
for customers who call with general questions. 

925-634-1131 Office Primary 
925-634-8818 Office Secondary 

Field Staff 

Delivers water quality notices to door hangers. 
 
Provides backup to water system operator. 
 
Conducts site inspections of all facilities. 

925-634-8818 Office 
209-401-4298 Cell 

Public Information Officer (PIO) 

Coordinate with all the other agencies PIOs. 
 
Report and work with the joint information center (JIC) if more than one 
agency is involved.  

925-634-1131 Office 

 

 

 

  

77



Page 41 of 132 

 
 

 
78



Page 42 of 132 

 
 

9.2B - Additional Contacts 

i. Local & Public Response Agencies  

Agency Services Department Location Phone Number 

 
CAL OES Costal Region II  
Mutual Aid 
 

Local Emergency Management  916-206-1470 

 
East Contra Costa County Fire 
Department Station 59 
 

Local Fire Department Station 59 Bixler Road 925-757-1303 

 
Brentwood Police Department 
 

Local Law Enforcement Dispatch 925-778-3911 

 
Contra Costa County Health 
Department 
 

Local Health & Environment Contra Costa County 925-692-8510 

 
Contra Costa County  
Public Works 
 

Local Public Works Department Contra Costa County 925-313-2000 

 
Contra Costa County HAZMAT 
 

Local HAZMAT Response Team 24 Hour Emergency  925-335-3232 

Private & Public Health Labs 

 
FGL Fruit Growers Lab 
 

Stockton, CA 209-942-0181 

 
Alpha Analytical Lab  
 

Livermore, CA 925-828-6226 

 
Cal Test Analytical Lab 
 

Napa, CA 707-258-4000 

 
Babcock Lab 
 

Riverside, CA 951-653-3351 

 
Region 9 Bay Delta 
 

Richmond, CA 510-412-2331 

 
State Water Resource Control 
Board Drinking Division Water 
Primacy Agency 
 

California Water Boards  
San Francisco Region 2 

California State 
San Francisco, CA 

510-622-2300 

 
State Water Resources Control 
Board Regional Water Quality 
Control Board 
 

State Water Quality Control 
California State 
Sacramento, CA 

916-341-5250 

 

 

79



Page 43 of 132 

 
 

ii. Additional Agencies  

Agency Note: Phone Number 

 
Contra Costa Office of Emergency Services 
 

 925-228-5000 

 
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services  
(CAL EMA) 
 

 916-845-8510 

 
Community Warning System 
 

 925-313-9622 

 
FEMA 
 

 800-621-3362 

 
AMR Ambulance Services 
 

 800-913-9106 

 
Paramedics/EMS 
 

 925-933-1313 

 
PG&E Emergency Line 
 

 800-743-5000 

 
John Muir Hospital (Emergency Room) 
 

2400 Balfour Road 
Brentwood, CA (10 miles) 

925-308-8111 

 
Kaiser Permanente (Emergency Room) 
 

4501 Sand Creek Road 
Antioch, CA (15 miles) 

925-813-3100 

 
Contra Costa Medical Center 
 

2500 Alhambra Avenue 
Martinez, CA (38 miles) 

925-370-5000 

 
Contra Costa Sheriff’s Delta Station 
 

9100 Brentwood Blvd 
Brentwood, CA (7 miles) 

925-646-2441 

 
California Highway Patrol (CHP) 
 

5001 Blum Road 
Martinez, CA (37 miles) 

925-646-4980 

 
Contra Costa Psychiatric Emergency  
 

2400 Alhambra Avenue 
Martinez, CA (38 miles) 

925-646-2800 

 
Sandbag Station  
 

Byron Airport 
500 Eagle Court 
Byron, CA (9 miles) 

 

 
Sandbag Station 
 

Knightsen Farm Bureau 
3020 Second Street 
Knightsen, CA (10 miles) 

 

 

 

 

 

80



Page 44 of 132 

 
 

iii. Critical Local Suppliers 

Type of Service/Supply Company/Vendor Location Address Phone Number 

 
Bulk Chlorine 
 

Univar  602-484-4560 

 
Bulk Polymer 
 

Polydyne  912-884-8719 

 
Bulk Alum 
 

Thatcher  801-834-4166 

 
Diesel Fuel Delivery 
 

Ramos Oil Company 
3515 Navy Drive #A 
Stockton, CA  

209-465-6255 

 
Electrical & SCADA Services 
 

CALCON Systems Inc. 
12919 Alcosta Blvd #9 
San Ramon, CA 

925-277-0665 

 
Telstar 
 

1717 Solano Way #34 
Concord, CA 

925-671-2888 

 
TESCO Controls Inc. 
 

8440 Florin Road 
Sacramento, CA 

916-395-8800 

 
Electrical Supplies 
 

Wille Electric 
432 North Grant Street 
Stockton, CA  

209-943-2441 

 
Pump/Motor Purchases 
 

Ace Electric Motor & Pump 
529 North Orange Street 
Stockton, CA 

209-464-6428 

 
Pumping Services 
 

Roto-Rooter Pumping & Water 
Cleanup  

3500 Clayton Road #113 
Concord, CA 

925-889-4976 

 
Rental Equipment Services 
 

Ahern Rentals 
3673 Mallard Drive 
Benicia, CA 

707-748-1900 

 
All Star Rents 
 

1204 Sunset Drive 
Antioch, CA 

925-755-7368 

 
United Rentals 
 

2911 East Fremont Street 
Stockton, CA 

209-948-9500 

 
United Rentals Fluid Solutions 
 

2700 California Avenue 
Pittsburg, CA 

925-252-2400 

 
General Supplies 
 

ACE Hardware 
8900 Brentwood Blvd #J 
Brentwood, CA 

925-634-3201 

 
 
Home Depot 
 

5631 Lone Tree Way 
Brentwood, CA 

925-513-6060 

 
Bottled Water Delivery 
 

Alhambra/Primo  800-728-5634 

 
Local Food Market & Water 
 

Safeway 
14841 Highway 4 
Discovery Bay, CA 

925-626-6000 

 

81



Page 45 of 132 

 
 

iv. County & State Agencies 

 

 

  

Organization Name Contact Numbers 

Police, Fire, HAZMAT First Responders 

Call 911 
925-646-2441 BPD - CCC Sheriff’s Delta Station 
925-757-1303 ECCFD - Dispatch 
925-335-3232 HAZMAT 24hr Emergency 

SWRCB District Engineer 

If they cannot be reached, call the CA Warning 
Center’s 24/7 number and ask for SWRCB Duty 
Officer. The manager will be contacted. 
 

510-620-3454 Day 
510-421-8382 Evening 

FBI Regional Office Regional FBI Office San Francisco  415-553-7400 

County Public Health Officer Contra Costa County  925-957-5403 

County OES 
 
LEPC Region 2 - CAL OES Liaison (Fairfield, CA) 

831-444-1351 

CA OES (State OES) 
Warning Center 
Ask for SWRCB Duty Officer for Drinking Water 
Program 

800-852-7550  
707-862-2358  
916-657-9494 Public Safety Communications  
916-845-8911 California State Warning Center 

Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Region 2 - San Francisco Regional Water Quality 
Control Board  

510-622-2300 

CA Department of Fish and Wildlife Region 3 - Bay Delta  707-428-2002 

Water Quality Laboratory US EPA Region 9 - (Richmond, CA) 510-412-2331 

82



Page 46 of 132 

 
 

  
83



Page 47 of 132 

 
 

84



Page 48 of 132 

 
 

9.2C - Maps (section 3.2) 

Map i. - Aerial View of TODB Service Area (provided by Google Maps) 

  

85



Page 49 of 132 

 
 

Map ii. - TODB Drinking Water & Sanitary Sewer System 

 

  

86



Page 50 of 132 

 
 

Map iii. - TODB Customer Area Plots & Addresses 

 

  

87



Page 51 of 132 

 
 

Map iv. - TODB Sampling Stations 

 

  

88



Page 52 of 132 

 
 

Map v. - TODB Service Area & Pipelines  

 

  

89



Page 53 of 132 

 
 

 

  

90



Page 54 of 132 

 
 

9.2D - Emergency Notifications and Cancellation Plans with Forms (section 6.4) 

i. Water Quality Emergency Notification Plan 

 

  

91



Page 55 of 132 

 
 

ii. First Responders Phone List - (Town of Discovery Bay) 

ANIMAL CONTROL  LAW ENFORCEMENT & POLICE  

Animal Control 925-335-8300 
925-779-6989 

Sheriff Dispatch 
Delta Station - 9100 Brentwood Blvd 

925-646-2441 

 Brentwood Police Dispatch  925-778-3911 

Vector Control 925-771-6696 Brentwood Non-Emergency  925-778-2441 

  CHP - California Highway Patrol 925-646-4980 

EMERGENCY SERVICES (911)    

CCC OES 925-228-5000 PSYCHIATRIC EMERGENCY SERVICES  

CAL OES Costal Region II 916-206-1470 
Contra Costa Regional Health (38 miles) 
2500 Alhambra Avenue, Martinez CA 

925-646-2800 

CAL EMA 916-845-8510 
Contra Costa Crisis Center 
On Site Mobile Grief Response Team 

800-837-1818 

CCC Health Department 925-692-8510   

Community Warning System 925-313-9622 SANDBAG STATIONS  

American Red Cross 866-272-2237 
Byron Airport (9 miles) 
500 Eagle Court, Byron CA 

 

FEMA 800-621-3362 
Knightsen Farm Bureau (10 miles) 
3020 Second Street, Knightsen CA 

 

    

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (911)  TRANSPORTATION (511)  

AMR Ambulance Services 800-913-9106 ARI Roadside Assistance 800-227-2273 

Paramedics & Emergency Medical 925-933-1313 BART Information 510-464-6000 

  Tri Delta Transit 925-754-4040 

FIRE DEPARTMENT  Dial A Ride 925-754-3060 

Fire and EMS Services 911 landline   

ECCFPD Bixler Station 59 925-933-1313 WATER RELATED CONTACTS  

Fire Department Dispatch 925-757-1303 Reclamation District 800 925-634-2351 

  Discovery Bay Harbor Master 925-634-5928 

GAS & ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY  US Coast Guard 707-643-2975 

PG&E Emergency Line  800-743-5000 CCC Public Works Flood Zones 925-313-2351 

PG&E 24 hour Liaison  925-768-2951 Flood Maintenance Division 925-313-7000 

  Department of Boating & Waterways SAC 888-326-2822 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  Raw Sewage Entering Body of Water 800-852-7550 

HAZMAT Emergency Line 925-665-3232 SWQCB Raw Sewage Spills 707-576-2220 

CCC HAZMAT Program 925-335-3200   

Delta Household HAZWASTE Facility 925-756-1990 VEOLIA STAFF  

Poison Control 800-222-1222 24 hour Emergency Line 925-634-8818 

  Project Manager 925-634-8818 

HOSPITALS WITH EMERGENCY ROOMS  Operations Supervisor 925-786-9131 

John Muir Urgent Care (10 miles) 
2400 Balfour Road, Brentwood CA 

925-308-8111 
Maintenance Supervisor 209-278-8238 

Administrative Assistant 510-871-1068 

John Muir Medical Center (40 miles) 
1601 Ygnacio Valley Road, Walnut Creek CA 

925-939-3000 
  

  

Kaiser Antioch Medical Center (15 miles) 
4501 Sand Creek Road, Antioch CA 

925-813-3100 
  

  

CCC Medical Center (38 miles) 
2500 Alhambra Avenue, Martinez CA 

925-307-5000 
  

  

  

92



Page 56 of 132 

 
 

iii. Contra Costa Disaster Preparedness Services 

  

93



Page 57 of 132 

 
 

  
94



Page 58 of 132 

 
 

iv. Boil Water Notice, Cancellation, and Boil Advisory Guide (English) 

SEE NEXT PAGES FOR COPIES  

  

95



Page 59 of 132 

 
 

 
96



Page 60 of 132 

 
 

 

97



Page 61 of 132 

 
 

  
98



Page 62 of 132 

 
 

  
99



Page 63 of 132 

 
 

  
100



Page 64 of 132 

 
 

 

101



Page 65 of 132 

 
 

  

102



Page 66 of 132 

 
 

 

103



Page 67 of 132 

 
 

  

104



Page 68 of 132 

 
 

v. Boil Water Notice, Cancellation, and Boil Advisory Guide (Spanish) 

SEE NEXT PAGES FOR COPIES  

 

  

105



Page 69 of 132 

 
 

 

  

106



Page 70 of 132 

 
 

  
107



Page 71 of 132 

 
 

 

 

  

108



Page 72 of 132 

 
 

  
109



Page 73 of 132 

 
 

 

110



Page 74 of 132 

 
 

  

111



Page 75 of 132 

 
 

  

112



Page 76 of 132 

 
 

  

113



Page 77 of 132 

 
 

  

114



Page 78 of 132 

 
 

vi. Unsafe Water Alert (English) 

SEE NEXT PAGES FOR COPIES  

  

115



Page 79 of 132 

 
 

  
116



Page 80 of 132 

 
 

 

  

117



Page 81 of 132 

 
 

vii. Unsafe Water Alert (Spanish) 

SEE NEXT PAGES FOR COPIES  

  

118



Page 82 of 132 

 
 

 

119



Page 83 of 132 

 
 

  
120



Page 84 of 132 

 
 

9.2E - Critical Facilities & Asset Information 

i. Wells  

The Town of Discovery Bay has the following Wells: 

Well No. Address 
Groundwater 

Basin 
Aquifer 
Name 

Perforation (ft) Depth (ft) 
Flowrate 

(GPM) 

01B 
1037 Discovery Bay Blvd 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

East Contra Costa 
Sub Basin 

Deep 
271-289 
308-340 

350 1,600 

02 
1535 Discovery Bay Blvd 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

East Contra Costa 
Sub Basin 

Deep 245-335 348 850 

04A 
1800 Newport Drive 

Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
East Contra Costa 

Sub Basin 
Deep 307-347 357 1,800 

05A 
2400 Newport Drive 

Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
East Contra Costa 

Sub Basin 
Deep 

251-281 
307-347 

357 1,500 

06 
1800 Willow Lakes Road 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

East Contra Costa 
Sub Basin 

Deep 
270-295 
305-350 

360 2,200 

07 
2199 Newport Drive 

Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
East Contra Costa 

Sub Basin 
Deep 282-292 346 1,800 

 

01 (INACTIVE) 

03 (INACTIVE) 

04 (INACTIVE) 

05 (DESTROYED) 

 

ii. Water Treatment Plants  

Willow Water Treatment Plant: 1800 Willow Lakes Road Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
Well 06 On-site 1800 Willow Lakes Road uses on-site generator 

Well 01B Off-site 1037 Discovery Bay Blvd requires portable generator 

Well 02 Off-site 1535 Discovery Bay Blvd requires portable generator 

Maximum Production Rate  4,100 GPM 

Maximum Filter Rate 2,400 GPM from 3 filters at 800 GPM each 

Maximum Distribution Rate 6,200 GPM 

Disinfection Method Sodium Hypochlorite with 1,000 gallon capacity 

Ground Storage Tank (North) 750,000 Gallons 

Ground Storage Tank (South) 750,000 Gallons 

Maximum Storage Capacity 1,500,000 Gallons 

Backwash Tank Capacity 84,000 Gallons 

Chlorine Residual Range 0.2 - 2.0 PPM 

Distribution and Jockey Pumps 4 Distribution Pumps & 2 Jockey Pumps 

Maximum Distribution Flow Distribution Pumps: 5,200 GPM and Jockey Pumps 1,000 GPM 

Special Instructions & Notes: 

Elementary school directly in front of facility, District Office inside of WTP & Community Center behind facility. 
Past business hours, gates locked, requires TODB padlock key for entry.  

 

121



Page 85 of 132 

 
 

Newport Water Treatment Plant: 1800 Newport Drive Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
Well 04 On-site 1800 Newport Drive uses on-site generator 

Well 05 Off-site 2400 Newport Drive requires portable generator 

Well 07 Off-site 2199 Newport Drive requires portable generator 

Maximum Production Rate  5,400 GPM 

Maximum Filter Rate 4,000 GPM from 2 filters at 2,000 GPM each 

Maximum Distribution Rate 6,000 GPM 

Disinfection Method Sodium Hypochlorite with 1,000 gallon capacity 

Ground Storage Tank (North) 275,000 Gallons 

Ground Storage Tank (South) 275,000 Gallons 

Maximum Storage Capacity 550,000 Gallons 

Backwash Tank Capacity 100,000 Gallons 

Chlorine Residual Range 0.2 - 2.0 PPM 

Distribution and Jockey Pumps 4 Distribution Pumps & 2 Jockey Pumps 

Maximum Distribution Flow Distribution Pumps: 5,000 GPM and Jockey Pumps 1,000 GPM 

Special Instructions & Notes: 

Residential homes across street from plant. 
Past business hours, gates locked, requires TODB padlock key for entry.  

 

Total Water System: Willow WTP and Newport WTP 

Maximum Production Rate 9,500 GPM 

Maximum Filter Rate 6,400 GPM 

Maximum Distribution Rate 12,200 GPM 

Maximum Storage Capacity 2,050,000 Gallons 

Max Cap with Backwash Tanks 2,234,000 Gallons 

iii. Facilities Inspections List  

 

Table of Contents: 

Facility Name Address Page 

   

Well 01B  1037 Discovery Bay Boulevard  

Well 02 1535 Discovery Bay Boulevard (adjacent)  

Well 04A 1800 Newport Drive at Newport WTP  

Well 05A 2400 Newport Drive  

Well 06 1800 Willow Lakes Road at Willow WTP  

Well 07 2199 Newport Drive bridge (West side)  

Willow Water Treatment Plant  1800 Willow Lakes Road  

Newport Water Treatment Plant  1800 Newport Drive  

General Inspection Form Blank Template  

 

 

  

122



Page 86 of 132 

 
 

 

  

123



Page 87 of 132 

 
 

 

  

124



Page 88 of 132 

 
 

 

  

125



Page 89 of 132 

 
 

 

  

126



Page 90 of 132 

 
 

 

  

127



Page 91 of 132 

 
 

 

  

128



Page 92 of 132 

 
 

 

  

129



Page 93 of 132 

 
 

 

  

130



Page 94 of 132 

 
 

  
131



Page 95 of 132 

 
 

 

  

132



Page 96 of 132 

 
 

 

 

  

133



Page 97 of 132 

 
 

 

  

134



Page 98 of 132 

 
 

 

  

135



Page 99 of 132 

 
 

 

  

136



Page 100 of 132 

 
 

 

  

137



Page 101 of 132 

 
 

 

  

138



Page 102 of 132 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

139



Page 103 of 132 

 
 

 

  

140



Page 104 of 132 

 
 

9.2F - EWQSK Supplies List (section 6.6) 

i. (EPA Response Protocol Toolbox: Planning for and Responding to Drinking Water Contamination Threats and Incidents)  

141



Page 105 of 132 

 
 

  
142



Page 106 of 132 

 
 

9.2G - Emergency Supply Vendors 

Type of Service/Supply Company/Vendor Location Address Phone Number 

 
Bulk Chlorine 
 

Univar  602-484-4560 

 
Bulk Polymer 
 

Polydyne  912-884-8719 

 
Bulk Alum 
 

Thatcher  801-834-4166 

 
Diesel Fuel Delivery 
 

Ramos Oil Company 
3515 Navy Drive #A 
Stockton, CA  

209-465-6255 

 
Electrical & SCADA Services 
 

CALCON Systems Inc. 
12919 Alcosta Blvd #9 
San Ramon, CA 

925-277-0665 

 
Telstar 
 

1717 Solano Way #34 
Concord, CA 

925-671-2888 

 
TESCO Controls Inc. 
 

8440 Florin Road 
Sacramento, CA 

916-395-8800 

 
Electrical Supplies 
 

Wille Electric 
432 North Grant Street 
Stockton, CA  

209-943-2441 

 
Pump/Motor Purchases 
 

Ace Electric Motor & Pump 
529 North Orange Street 
Stockton, CA 

209-464-6428 

 
Pumping Services 
 

Roto-Rooter Pumping & Water 
Cleanup  

3500 Clayton Road #113 
Concord, CA 

925-889-4976 

 
Rental Equipment Services 
 

Ahern Rentals 
3673 Mallard Drive 
Benicia, CA 

707-748-1900 

 
All Star Rents 
 

1204 Sunset Drive 
Antioch, CA 

925-755-7368 

 
United Rentals 
 

2911 East Fremont Street 
Stockton, CA 

209-948-9500 

 
United Rentals Fluid Solutions 
 

2700 California Avenue 
Pittsburg, CA 

925-252-2400 

 
General Supplies 
 

ACE Hardware 
8900 Brentwood Blvd #J 
Brentwood, CA 

925-634-3201 

 
 
Home Depot 
 

5631 Lone Tree Way 
Brentwood, CA 

925-513-6060 

 
Bottled Water Delivery 
 

Alhambra/Primo  800-728-5634 

 
Local Food Market & Water 
 

Safeway 
14841 Highway 4 
Discovery Bay, CA 

925-626-6000 

143



Page 107 of 132 

 
 

  
144



Page 108 of 132 

 
 

9.2H - Vulnerability Assessment Table 11.  (section 2.1) 

  

145



Page 109 of 132 

 
 

  
146



Page 110 of 132 

 
 

  
147



Page 111 of 132 

 
 

  
148



Page 112 of 132 

 
 

9.2I - Water System Details  

 

  

149



Page 113 of 132 

 
 

 

  

150



Page 114 of 132 

 
 

9.2J - Water Treatment Operations Plan 

i. Overview 

The Willow Lake Water Treatment (WLWTP) and Newport Drive Treatment Plant (NDWTP) in Discovery Bay, CA are Class 

2 groundwater treatment plants that use manganese greensand filters to remove Secondary Contaminants iron and 

manganese. The process uses sodium hypochlorite in excess of what needed for disinfection dosage. Above-ground 

storage tanks at each plant equalize daily distribution requirements and hold an additional reserve for fire-fighting. The 

distribution system is a single pressure zone loop network simultaneously fed by the distribution pumps at each 

treatment plant.  

Pre-filter and distribution system entry point free chlorine residuals and distribution system pressure and flow are 

monitored continuously. Post-filter total and free chlorine residuals and pre-filter free chlorine residuals are analyzed 

daily. Filter differential pressures, pump motor hours and storage tank levels are recorded daily. Individual well sites are 

checked daily. Bacteriologic sampling and other water quality monitoring is done according to State and Federal 

schedules.  

The overall process control strategy is to first produce water that is safe to drink, second to produce the quantity 

demanded, and finally to produce water that meets secondary water quality standards.  

 

ii. Raw Water Production  

Design Data  

Table 1: Groundwater Wells 
ADWF 
GPM 

Target 
GPM 

AWWF 
GPM 

Well 01B 150HP, 380ft 19951 1,600 1,800 1,800 

Well 02 100HP, 355ft. 1971/1978 800 850 900 

Well 04A 150HP, 362ft, 1996 1,800 1,800 2,000 

Well 05A 200HP, 360ft. 1991 1,800 2,000 2,000 

Well 06 150HP, 360ft. 2009 1,700 1,700 1,900 

Well 072 200HP, 364ft. 2014 1,800 1,800 2,000 
 

Note 1: Retrofitted 12/2013, increasing maximum flow by 200 GPM. 

Note 2: In service 7/22/2015.  

Table 1 shows all active groundwater wells, nameplate horsepower, depth of well, date first put into service, and design 

flow rates. Well 01B, 02, and 06 supply WLWTP. Wells 04A, 05A, and 07 supply NDWTP. 

Because of high salinity/TDS levels, Well 05 is operated only during periods of high demand. If Well 05 is used, salinity 

levels must be monitored daily. All Wells must be run at least every 30 days or re-testing for bacteriological 

contamination must be done. Seasonal variations in the water table may cause fluctuations in raw water quality that 

may additionally impact production.  

 

 

 

 

151



Page 115 of 132 

 
 

iii. Disinfection 

Design Data 

Table 2: Feed Design Data 
WLWTP NDWTP 

Well 01B Well 02A Well 06 Well 04A Well 05A Well 07 

Location Pre-Filter 

Chemical Used NaOCI (12.5% typical) 

Metering Rate (typical, GPD)1 72.0 55.2 144.0 66.0 156.0 114.0 

Metering Rate (combined)2 144.0 180.0 

NaOCI Storage Capacity (gallons) 1,090 1,090 

Minimum Reorder Point (gallons)3 375 384 

Days On-Hand (full tank) 4.97 3.92 
 

Note 1: Maximum metering pump rate is 190.2 GPD per Well. 

Note 2: Either Wells 01B and 02A together or Well 06 alone. Wells 05A and 07 cannot be used simultaneously. 

Note 3: Reorder point is 30 inches, 12.8 gal/in at WLWTP and 12.5 gal/in at NDWTP. 

 

 

Key Control Parameters 

Table 3: Key Control Parameters, WLWTP  LCL LWL Target UWL UCL 

Pre-filter Free Chlorine, mg/L4 1.0 1.2 1.4 3.0 5.0 

Pre-filter Total Chlorine4 1.0 1.2 1.4 3.0 5.0 

Post-filter A Free Chlorine4  0.20 0.50 0.70 2.005 4.0 

Post-filter B Free Chlorine4 0.20 0.50 0.70 2.005 4.0 

Post-filter C Free Chlorine4 0.20 0.50 0.70 2.005 4.0 

Above-ground Storage Free Chlorine6 0.20 0.50 0.70 1.50 2.00 

DWS Entry Point Free Chlorine7  0.20 0.50 0.70 1.50 2.00 

DWS Maximum Retention Time Free Chlorine8 0.02 0.10 0.20 1.50 2.00 

Well 01B Metering Rate, GPD9   3.000 7.133 7.529 

Well 02A Metering Rate9   2.300 7.133 7.529 

Well 06 Metering Rate9   6.000 7.133 7.529 

WLWTP NaCOI Used, Wells 01B &02A, GPD10 11   127.2 139.9 152.6 

WLWTP NaCOI Used, Well 0610 11   144.0 158.4 172.8 
 

Note 4: Daily grab sample. 

Note 5: Recommended SMCL for free Cl2 residual. 

Note 6: Daily grab sample taken from North storage tank. 

Note 7: Continuously monitored. 

Note 8: Monthly grab sample. 

Note 9: UWL is 90% of metering pump capacity, UCL is 95%. 

Note 10: Well 01B and 02A are normally online. If Well 06 is online, Wells 01B and 2A are offline. 

Note 11: UWL is 10% over target, UCL is 20%. 

 

 

 

 

152



Page 116 of 132 

 
 

Table 4: Key Control Parameters, NDWTP  LCL LWL Target UWL UCL 

Pre-filter Free Chlorine, mg/L5 1.0 1.2 1.4 3.0 5.0 

Pre-filter Total Chlorine4 1.0 1.2 1.4 3.0 5.0 

Post-filter A Free Chlorine4  0.20 0.50 0.70 2.005 4.0 

Post-filter B Free Chlorine4 0.20 0.50 0.70 2.005 4.0 

Above-ground Storage Free Chlorine12 0.20 0.50 0.70 1.50 2.00 

DWS Entry Point Free Chlorine7  0.20 0.50 0.70 1.50 2.00 

DWS Maximum Retention Time Free Chlorine8 0.02 0.10 0.20 1.50 2.00 

Well 04A Metering Rate, GPD8   2.750 7.133 7.529 

Well 05A Metering Rate8   6.500 7.133 7.529 

Well 07 Metering Rate8   4.750 7.133 7.529 

NDWTP NaCOI Used, GPD10    240.0 264.0 288.0 
 

Note 12: Daily Grab sample taken from South storage tank.  

The post-filter and distribution free chlorine residual and pH is monitored continuously via HACH in-line analyzers.  

The results are displayed on site and also via SCADA.  

Daily grab samples are taken during plant rounds using an EPA certified hand-held colorimeter and recorded on the 

plant round checklist, typically between 07:00 and 09:00 on weekdays and 0:900 to 11:00 on weekends and holidays. 

Chlorine metering rates are adjusted on site for both water treatment plants on an as needed basis. The on-call operator 

has remote monitoring capability, but must adjust metering rates locally.  

Weekly sampling for total and fecal coliforms and chlorine residual and quarterly sampling for disinfection byproducts 

determine regulatory compliance.  

 

iv. Process Troubleshooting Guide 

A. Low Chlorine Residual: 

1. Check metering pump rate. 

 a. Increase pump rate to meet change in demand. 

 b. May also run second pump in hand or in parallel. 

2. Check for sufficient NaOCI solution in bulk storage tank. 

 a. Verify most recent delivery request. 

 b. Put other WTP in lead to reduce demand. 

3. Check filter differential pressures. 

 a. Back wash filters if any differential pressure is ≥ 8 psi. 

  i. WLWTP requires backwash tank ≤ 4.5’ and water storage tank ≥ 19’. 

  ii. NDWTP requires backwash tank ≤ 7.1’ and water storage tank ≥ 17.2’. 

4. Check for power/run signal to metering pump. 

 a. Run extension cord to manually power metering pump. 

5. Check for loss prime. 

153



Page 117 of 132 

 
 

6. Check metering pump differential pressure. 

 a. High differential indicates blockage. 

 b. Low differential indicates leak. 

7. Check for broken suction or discharge line. 

8. Check for blocked injector. 

9. Check backwash storage tank sediment level. 

 a. Wait at least 8 hours from last backwash. 

 b. Flush spigot at level transducer. 

  i. If water doesn’t clear in one minute, go to next step. 

 c. Crack tank drain valve. 

  i. If water doesn’t clear in one minute, go to next step. 

 d. Submit work order for early tank cleaning.  

 

v. Filtration, Backwash and Recycle 

Groundwater filtration is accomplished via the Loprest Iron and Manganese Removal System, which relies on catalytic 

oxidation and multimedia filtration to remove secondary contaminants. A disinfection residual is a byproduct of the 

reaction. The recommended dose is 1ppm Cl2 per ppm iron and 2ppm Cl2 per ppm manganese plus the desired residual. 

Normal operation requires periodic backwashing. The backwash cycle is manually initiated once the filter differential 

pressure is 8-10 psi. The backwash cycle has 4x 4-minute stages; Surface Wash, Surface Wash & Backwash, Backwash, 

and Rinse. NDWTP backwashes each of two 164 ft2 filters in sequence. WLWTP also backwashes the three 120 ft2 filters 

in sequence, but the rinse stage is performed simultaneously. The backwash is normally conducted one to three times a 

week, based on filter differential pressure. A filter out of service for more than two weeks must have the media 

reconditioned. The filter media is inspected annually.  

The backwash water is held in above ground storage to settle. After a programmed 500-999 minutes (8.3-16.7 hours), 

the supernatant is pumped back to the filter during filtration where it is combined with raw water and re-filtered.  

Design Data and Key Control Parameters  

Table 5 shows the key control parameters for WLWTP. Table 6 shows the key control parameters for NDWTP.  

Table 5: WLWTP Greensand Filters  LCL LWL Target UWL UCL 

Filtration - total GPM 720 1,440 2,550 2,880 2,880 

Differential Pressure PSI    11 15 

Control Air Pressure PSI  29 80 90 130 145 

Per Filter GPM      

Filtration 240 480 850 960 960 

Surface Wash  120 240 360  

Backwash 1,440  1,620  1,800 

Rinse (filtration rate) 240 480 850 960 960 

 

 

 

154



Page 118 of 132 

 
 

Table 6: NDWTP Greensand Filters  LCL LWL Target UWL UCL 

Filtration - total GPM 1,056 2,112 4,000 4,224 4,224 

Differential Pressure PSI    11 15 

Control Air Pressure PSI  40 80 90 125 140 

Per Filter GPM      

Filtration 528 1,056 2,000 2,112 2,112 

Surface Wash  264 528 792  

Backwash 3,168  3,564  3,960 

Rinse (filtration rate) 528 1,056 2,000 2,112 2,112 

 

The operating flow rates are dependent on filter size. The differential at WLWTP is dependent on the pneumatic 

solenoid requirements. The differential pressure at NDWTP is dependent on the valve actuator requirements.  

The capacity and control parameters of the backwash storage tanks are shown in Table 7.  

Table 7: NDWTP Greensand Filters  
Capacity 
gallons 

LCL 
feet 

LWL 
feet 

Target Range 
feet 

UWL 
feet 

UCL 
feet 

WLWTP 84,000 2.0 3.0 3.5 - 12.4 12.6 12.8 

     Backwash Tank 1 84,000 2.0 3.0 3.5 - 12.4 12.6 12.8 

     Backwash Tank 21  50,000      

NDWTP 100,000 2.1 3.1 3.6 - 16.3 16.8 17.0 

     Backwash Tank 100,000 2.1 3.1 3.6 - 16.3 16.8 17.0 
 

Note 1: planned.  

The design data for the recycle pumps is shown in Table 8. 

Table 8: Recycle Pumps Quantity HP Flow GPM 

WLWTP    

Recycle Pump 2 5 190 

Recycle Pump1 1  340 

Total   380 

NDWTP    

Recycle Pump 2 7.5 200 

Total   400 
 

Note 1: planned.  

vi. Process Troubleshooting Guide 

A. Backwash Storage Tank H or HH Alarm 

1. Flush pressure transducer for at least one minute.  

2. Crack tank drain to manually drain tank. 

 a. Make sure the backwash water does not overflow the sewer drain. 

B. Filtration Backwash Failure 

1. Check filtration train assignment. 

 a. If trains are reversed, reassign and restart backwash. 

155



Page 119 of 132 

 
 

2. Check control air pressure. If it is below operational levels: 

 a. Verify the supply pressure is in the proper range.  

 b. Verify the compressor is operating normally. 

 c. Verify the pressure regulator is operating normally. 

 d. Check for air leaks in the supply lines and at the pneumatic solenoids. 

3. Check for faulted valves. 

 a. If a valve failed to open or shut: 

  i. Bleed pressure from the pneumatic valve solenoid manifold. 

  ii. Manually exercise the valve at the solenoid. Return solenoid to AUTO position. 

 

vii. Storage and Distribution 

Design Data and Key Control Parameters 

Table 9: WLWTP Drinking Water  
Capacity 
gallons 

LCL 
feet 

LWL 
feet 

Target Range 
feet 

UWL 
feet 

UCL 
feet 

North Tank 750,000 12.5 13.3 18.0 - 22.5 23.8 24.0 

South Tank 750,000 12.5 13.3 18.0 - 22.5 23.8 24.0 

Total  1,500,000      

 

Table 10: NDWTP Drinking Water  
Capacity 
gallons 

LCL 
feet 

LWL 
feet 

Target Range 
feet 

UWL 
feet 

UCL 
feet 

North Tank 275,000 10.6 12.5 16.0 - 18.5 18.8 19.0 

South Tank 275,000 10.6 12.5 16.0 - 18.5 18.8 19.0 

East Tank1 275,000      

Total  550,000      
 

Note 1: planned.  

As seen in Table 9 and Table 10 respectively, WLWTP has a storage capacity of 1.5 MG and NDWTP has 0.55 MG, for a 

combined storage capacity of 2.05 MG. 

According to the system’s peak demand capacity, 0.6 MG must be on-hand at any time to meet Title 22 requirements for 

drinking water distribution. An additional 0.54 MG is required by the Contra Costa Fire Department. The 1.14 MG is 

equal to 55.6% of total storage capacity. This is 10.6’ at NDWTP and 13.3’ at WLWTP or 12.5’across all storage tanks. 

Emergency storage of one Maximum Day Demand of 8.2 MG is ensured via a 750kW standby generator at each plant. 

The 8.2 MG MDD requirements is met with a combination of above ground storage and active filtration. 

Table 11: Distribution Pumps Quantity HP Flow GPM Min GPM Max GPM 

WLWTP    4,900 6,200 

Jockey Pump 2 25 500   

Booster Pump 4 75 1,300   

NDWTP    4,750 6,000 

Jockey Pump 2 25 150   

Booster Pump 4 75 1,250   

 

156



Page 120 of 132 

 
 

Variable speed distribution pumps at each plant respond to demand based on distribution system pressure. The firm 

capacity for each plant to meet demand is shown in Table 11 as “Min”. 

Jockey pumps and booster pumps automatically rotate lead and lag. When the lead pump is called it starts at 60% and 

immediately starts adjusting to match the pressure set-point. If it reaches 100% for 30 seconds, the second pump is 

called, and so on, until the distributions system’s maximum capacity is met. In reverse, once a lag pump is operating 30% 

for 60 seconds it shuts off, letting the remaining pumps control pressure according to demand. A distribution pressure of 

30 psi for 30 seconds causes low pressure alarm. These and other alarm set-points are shown in Table 12. 

  

Table 12: Distribution System Alarm Set-points LCL LWL UWL UCL 

NDWTP 20 30 85 90 

WLWTP 20 30 85 90 

 

The existing 46.4 mile distribution system is supplied simultaneously from both plants. Plant production capacity is 

balanced against demand by setting the distribution pressure 2 psi higher at one plant than the other. The key 

distribution system control parameters are shown in Table 13. 

Table 13: Lead/Lag Set-points Start PSI Target PSI Stop PSI 

NDWTP in Lead 

      ND Distribution Pump Set-points 59 62 65 

      WL Distribution Pump Set-points 57 59 61 

WLWTP in Lead 

     ND Distribution Pump Set-points 58 61 64 

     WL Distribution Pump Set-points 61 63 65 

 

viii. Process Troubleshooting Guide 

A. Low Drinking Water Storage Tank Level 

1. Check for faulted well pumps (fail to start, etc.). 

 a. Reset well (may require cycling main power if local reset doesn’t work). 

 b. Reset alarm at WTP PLC. 

2. Check distribution system demand. 

 a. Lower booster pump start/stop set-points by 10 psi each (automatic pressure control). 

  i. If other plant has sufficient storage make no more adjustments. 

  ii. If other plant is also low, reduce other plant’s set-points by the same amount. 

  iii. If demand continues, lower set-points for both plants an additional 10 psi. 

  iv. Do not lower set-points below an average 30 psi (ND) and 32 psi (WL). 

 b. Turn off one or more booster pumps (“manual” system pressure control). 

  i. Monitor for sufficient distribution system pressure.  

B. Low CL2 Residual  

1. Check metering pumps for operation while wells are running.  

 a. Is metering rate adequate? 

 b. Are any alarms active? 

157



Page 121 of 132 

 
 

  i. High discharge pressure indicates clogged injector or restricted line.  

  ii. Low discharge pressure indicates a leak in the line. 

2. Check analyzer operation and reagent levels. 

 a. Replace reagent kit if levels are under ½ inch. 

 b. Record and look up any error codes. 

3. Check filter differential pressures. 

 a. Initiate a backwash if the differential pressure is ≥ 8 psi. 

4. Check backwash tank sediment level. 

C. Low Distribution System Pressure / Excessive Demand 

1. Check distribution system pressure set-points (plant lead/lag set-points). 

2. Check for faulted jockey or booster pumps/ 

 a. Rest pump(s) - may require cycling MCC power if local reset doesn’t work. 

 b. Reset alarm at WTP PLC. 

3. Check distribution system demand.  

 a. Excessive/uncharacteristic demand may indicate leak in distribution system. 

  i. Coordinate with client to confirm distribution system leak. 

  ii. Contact client for distribution system repair service. 

4. If in contact with the customer ask: 

 a. Is there good pressure at the hose bib outside the house? 

 b. Is water softener installed at the location? 

  i. Good pressure outside and low pressure inside indicates the water softener needs service. 

 c. Do neighbors have good water pressure? 

  i. Inform the client if only one house or other locations are affected.  

5. Check distribution system valves 

 a. One end of the distribution system loop may be closed. 

  i. Coordinate with client to check appropriate valves.  

D. Brown Water Complaint: 

1. Have them run water at the farthest tap for at least one minute. 

2. Check backwash filter settling timer. 

 a. Increase to 999 minutes. 

3. Check post-filter water color. 

4. Check backwash tank sediment level. 

5. Flush distribution system upstream of complaint location.  

 

 

 

 

158



Page 122 of 132 

 
 

 

 

  

159



Page 123 of 132 

 
 

  
160



Page 124 of 132 

 
 

9.2K - Locations of PPE, Disaster Kit & Vehicles/Equipment 

i. PPE 

Item Primary Location Secondary Locations 
Disaster Kit Admin - Women’s Restroom  

4 & 14mil disposable gloves Admin - Women’s Restroom  

Dust masks Admin - Women’s Restroom  

Safety glasses Admin - Women’s Restroom On persons 

Tyvek suits Admin - Women’s Restroom  

Full/Front brim hardhats Admin - Women’s Restroom On persons 

First Aid Kits Admin Offices/Control Room Vehicles & Buildings 

Eyewash, showers At chemical areas WTPs 

Fire extinguishers At exit/entrances all buildings Vehicles 

AED Admin - Main Hallway  

Spill kits Maintenance Garages  

   

   

  

ii. Veolia Vehicles 

ID # Year Make Model/Type Location Fuel Type 
 2006 Chevy Colorado Light Duty LPN 8G74713 WWTP 2 Gas 

 2011 Ford Ranger Light Duty LPN 38881D1 WWTP 2 Gas 

 2012 Ford F-250 Light Duty LPN 34454H1 WWTP 2 Gas 

 2014 Ford Escape SUV LPN 7EPG764 WWTP 2 Gas 

 2017 Ford Transit Connect Van LPN 14656H2 WWTP 2 Gas 

 2018 Ford Transit Connect Van LPN 62145N2 WWTP 2 Gas 

     

     

     

     

     

 

 

 

  

161



Page 125 of 132 

 
 

iii. TODB Vehicles  

ID # Year Make Model/Type Location Fuel Type 
105 2008 Ford F-250 LPN 1309388 WWTP 1 Gas 

106 2008 Chevy Colorado LPN 1319608 WWTP 1 Gas 

108 2010 Ford F-150 Long Bed LPN 1358843 WWTP 1 Gas 

109 2011 Ford F-150 LPN 1380458 WWTP 1 Gas 

110 2012 Ford Escape SUV LPN 1396057 District Office Gas 

113 2015 Ford F-150 Work Truck LPN 1452687 WWTP 1 Gas 

115 2015  Ford F-250 Work Truck LPN 1452501 WWTP 1 Gas 

116 2017 Ford F-250 Work Truck LPN 1528601 WWTP 1 Gas 

117 2017 Ford F-250 Work Truck LPN 1528602 WWTP 1 Gas 

118 2020 Ford F-150 Work Truck LPN 1591043 WWTP 1 Gas 

119 2020 Ford F-150 Work Truck LPN 1606873 Water Office Gas 

     

     

     

     

     
 

iv. Portable Generators 

ID # Year Make Model/Type Location Fuel / HP 
202 1999 Energy Generator 350kW Well 05A Diesel 

204 2000 Mighty Mover Generator 60kW WWTP 2 Diesel 

205 2001 Whiteman Generator 60kW WWTP 2 Diesel 

211 2005 Cummings Generator 150kW Newport Lift Station Diesel 

216 2008 Whisper Watt Ultra Silent Generator WWTP 2 Diesel 

313 2015 Emergency Stand-by Generator Well 07 Diesel 

     
  

162



Page 126 of 132 

 
 

 

v. Heavy Equipment / Other 

ID # Year Make Model/Type Location Fuel / HP 
101 1995 International F82 Truck w/ Conveyor WWTP 2 Diesel 

104 2006 Chevy Jomac Boom Truck LPN 1217613 WWTP 2 Diesel 

107 2008 Aquatech Vac Truck LPN 1310628 WWTP 2 Diesel 

111 2012 Gator Utility XUV  WWTP 1 Gas 

114 2003 GEM 4 Passenger Cart WWTP 1 Electric 

206 2004 PJ Trailer Dump Hauler LPN 954074 WWTP 1  

208 2005 Texas Bragg Utility Trailer LPN 4GP7317 WWTP 1  

210 2005 Trash Pump Trailer  WWTP 2 Gas 

212 2006 Hull Fuel Cell w/ Trailer LPN 1306774 WWTP 1 Electric 

213 2006 Texas Bragg HD Yellow Transport Trailer WWTP 2  

219 2012 Portable Message Board LPN 1437085 WWTP 1  

220 2015 Carry-on Trailer/Mower LPN 1481944 WWTP 1 Gas 

221 2017 Changzhou Pressure Washer Trailer WWTP 1  

222 2005 Forest River Utility Trailer LPN 1167686 WWTP 2  

223 2006 Texas Bragg Mower Trailer LPN 1358832 Willow Lake Road  

301 1999 CAT GP30 Forklift WWTP 2 Propane 

302 2003 GEHL CTL60 Track Loader WWTP 1 Diesel 

305 2001 CAT 3412 Stationary Generator WWTP 2 Diesel 

306 2001 CAT 3412 Stationary Generator Willow Lake Road Diesel 

307 2001 CAT 3412 Stationary Generator Newport Drive Diesel 

309 2012 Genie Trailer Boom Lift WWTP 1 Electric 

310 2011 CASE 570MXT Skip Loader  WWTP 1 Diesel 

311 2015 Multiquip Light Tower w/ Trailer WWTP 1 Diesel 

312 2015 John Deere Mower WWTP 1 Gas 

314  X-Mark Laser Mower WWTP 1 Gas 

315 2018 John Deere Utility Tractor WWTP 1 Gas  

     
 

 

 

  

163



Page 127 of 132 

 
 

 

  

164



Page 128 of 132 

 
 

Record of Changes and Reviews 

Title Veolia Name Signature Date 

 
Project Manager 

 
   

 
 

   

 
 

   

Title TODB Name Signature Date 

 
General Manager 

 
   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 

Document Version History  

Name Title Signature Date 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 

165



Page 129 of 132 

 
 

 

 

 

  

166



Page 130 of 132 

 
 

 

  

167



Page 131 of 132 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ERP provided by Veolia North America - Discovery Bay, CA Site 

168



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
"A Community Services District" 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 

December 15, 2021 

 

Prepared By:     Julie Carter, Finance Manager 
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
Agenda Title        
Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize the General Manager to Enter into Agreements with 1) Brandis Tallman, A 
Division of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. for Municipal Bond Underwriting Services; 2) Jones Hall Law Firm for Bond and 
Disclosure Counsel Services; and 3) Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates for Municipal Advisor Services. 
  
Recommended Action  
To authorize the General Manager to enter into agreements with 1) Brandis Tallman, A Division of Oppenheimer & Co., 
Inc. for Municipal Bond Underwriting Services; 2) Jones Hall Law Firm for Bond and Disclosure Counsel Services; and 3) 
Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates for Municipal Advisor Services. 
  
Executive Summary   
The Denitrification Project is currently under construction. The budget for the Denitrification Project is $20 million.  
 
Well #8 is in the planning stages and has an estimated budget of $5 million. 
 
Lechowicz & Tseng conducted the District's Water and Wastewater Rate Study, which the Board of Directors approved 
on June 3, 2020. Per the rate study, funding for the Denitrification and Well #8 capital projects are projected to be financed 
by a combination of utility rates, reserves, and the issuance of new debt. 
 
To issue new debt, it is prudent and essential that the District contract the following professional services: 
 

• Municipal Bond Underwriters - purchaser of the debt securities for the District. 
• Bond and Disclosure Counsel - renders an opinion on the validity of the bond offering, security of the offering and 

provides assurance that to the issuers and to investors that all legal and tax requirements covered by their opinion 
are met.  

• Municipal Advisor - provides advice to or on behalf of a municipal entity with respect to municipal financial 
products. 
 

Municipal Bond Underwriters 
Brandis Tallman, A Division of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc., provided excellent services during and after the 2017 bond 
process and continues to monitor the District's debt portfolio.  As part of their ongoing services Brandis Tallman continually 
reaches out to staff, providing updated legislative and other financial opportunities to better manage the District's long-
term debt.  The cost of the underwriting fee is not to exceed .7% of the bond issue plus expenses of approximately 
$20,000. 
 
Staff requested recommendations from Brandis Tallman for Bond and Disclosure Counsel and Municipal Advisors. Nicki 
Tallman from Brandis Tallman recommended 2 Bond Counsel firms and 2 Municipal Advisor firms for staff to interview. 
 
Bond Disclosure Counsel: 
1.  Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rocca estimated cost $75,000 plus expenses 
2.  Jones Hall Law Firm estimated cost $78,500 plus expenses 
 
Municipal Advisors: 
1.  Urban Futures estimated cost $40,000 plus expenses 
2.  Fieldman Rolapp & Associates estimated cost $39,000 plus expenses 
 

169



 
 

 
Staff Recommends the following Consultants: 
 

• Municipal Bond Underwriter– Nicki Tallman of Brandis Tallman, A Division of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. 
• Bond and Disclosure Counsel – Juan Galvan at Jones Hill, Law Firm. 
• Municipal Advisor – James Fabian at Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates. 

 
Staff recommends the firms listed above for the following reasons: 

• The Town has an excellent history of performance with Brandis Tallman. 
• The consultants are local to the Bay Area (although Jones Hall Law Firm is slightly more expensive, they are local, 

which should help reduce costs and increase accessibility).  
• The consultants were more prepared and exhibited a greater understanding of the District's needs in order to 

navigate a new round of financing.   
• All consultants would provide education and training for staff and the Board of Directors throughout the financing 

process. 
 
Staff, along with our financial advisor, will analyze the projects and costs to determine the amount of debt required.  Once 
this is completed, staff will present to the committee at a future Finance Committee Meeting recommendation(s) for debt 
financing.  
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to enter into agreements with 1) Brandis 
Tallman, A Division of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. for Municipal Bond Underwriting Services; 2) Jones Hall Law Firm for 
Bond and Disclosure Counsel Services; and 3) Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates for Municipal Advisor Services. 
  
Fiscal Impact: Yes-costs will be paid by debt proceeds.  
Amount Requested: Variable based on the amount of debt 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes 
Prog/Fund #   Category:         
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
Water and Wastewater Rate Study by Lechowicz & Tseng dated June 4, 2020 
   
Attachments: None 
  

 
AGENDA ITEM: E-4 

170



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

December 15, 2021 

 

Prepared By:     Mike Yeraka, Projects Manager 
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager 

Agenda Title   
 
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Authorization to Waive Annual $224 Vacant Lot Fee for Contra Costa Water 
District Los Vaqueros Pipeline Parcel Crossing Wastewater Plant #2 Property in Order to Complete Annexation of Plant 
#2 Property and Removal of Two Previously Detached Parcels from the Town Sphere of Influence. 
  
 
Recommended Action 
 

a. Approve the proposal to waive the annual $224 vacant lot fee for the Contra Costa Water District parcel crossing 
the Plant #2 property. 

b. Approve the LAFCO proposal to Remove APNs 011-190-044 and -045 from the Town’s Sphere of Influence to 
clean up the detachment of the same parcels from the Town’s service area that occurred in 2016. 

  
 
Executive Summary 
 
The District’s application to LAFCO to annex the Town’s Plant #2 property has been reviewed by the LAFCO Executive 
officer and Staff has been told that LAFCO may need to also include the Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) parcel that 
crosses the Plant #2 property in order for the Town to have a contiguous boundary. The area in blue on the attached 
exhibit is the CCWD parcel that crosses the Plant #2 parcels. It is this area that the LAFCO Executive officer is considering 
including in the annexation. CCWD has said they will not object to the inclusion of their property so long as they are not 
charged any annual fees. The annual Vacant Lot Fee is $224 but since the CCWD parcel can’t have any structures built 
on it and since it could prevent our annexation from being approved if CCWD were to object to their parcel being included 
in the annexation, Staff feels that it is in the Town’s best interest for the Board to take action to waive the fee. 
 
Also, as noted in the attached December 7, 2021, email from the LAFCO Executive Officer, the detachment of the two 
parcels shown on the attached Exhibit ‘B’ in 2016 never included removal from the Town’s Sphere of Influence. The 
LAFCO Executive Officer would like to use our application to clean up this issue and detach the two parcels from our SOI. 
 
 
 
 
Specific Committee Action: 
 

a. Approve the proposal to waive the annual $224 vacant lot fee for the Contra Costa Water District parcel crossing 
the Plant #2 property. 

b. Approve the LAFCO proposal to Remove APNs 011-190-044 and -045 from the Town’s Sphere of Influence to 
clean up the detachment of the same parcels from the Town’s service area that occurred in 2016. 

 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item: 
 
The Board had previously approved moving forward with the annexation application to LAFCO. 
 
 
 

171



 
 

 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
Amount Requested:  $0 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:    Yes 
Prog/Fund #   Category:   TBD 
 

Attachment 
 

1. Property Exhibit 
2. LAFCO email 
3. Exhibit ‘B’ showing 2 parcels  

  
 

AGENDA ITEM: E-5 

172



APN 008-430-033-3

APN 008-340-043-2

SOUTHERLY LIMIT OF LAFC 96-19
DOCUMENT NO. 98-0242328

NORTHERLY LINE OF HIGHWAY 4

APN 008-340-8
APN

008-340-8

DRAWN BY:
CHK'D BY:

DATE:

CALIFORNIACONTRA COSTA COUNTY

10-12-2021
IBM
IBM

19977.000.P

SHEET 1 OF 1

LEGEND
SOUTHERLY LIMIT OF LAFC 96-19 DOCUMENT NO.
98-0242328 NORTHERLY LINE OF HIGHWAY 4

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT DOCUMENT NO.
95-150272, EXCEPTION TO DOCUMENT NO.
2009-0151183

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY DOCUMENT NO. 2009-0151183
PORTION TO BE ANNEXED TO TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
EXPANSION AND ANNEXATION

173

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISCOVERY BAY BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTERN FARMS RANCH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTAGES AND TOWN OF DISCOVERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPHERE OF INFLUENCE EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND ANNEXATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
5142B FRANKLIN DR, PLEASANTON, CA 94588

AutoCAD SHX Text
(925)225-0690

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ian MacDonald

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\19977\SRV\EXH-S\EXH-TODB_ANNEXATION_WASTWATER_PLANT_2.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=300'



1

Mike Yeraka

From: Lou Ann Texeira <LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us>
Sent: Tuesday, December 7, 2021 2:03 PM
To: Mike Yeraka
Subject: LAFCO 16-02

Hi Mike, 
 
As noted in the LAFCO and reflected in the 8/10/16 LAFCO meeting minutes: Commissioners 
continued the public hearing from the July 13 meeting in order for the BBID proposed revisions to the original proposal 
to be publicly noticed. The revised proposal would exclude APNs 011-190-044 and -045 from the detachment of 
territory from BBID, and it would detach the same parcels from TODBCSD.” 
 

The intent was to remove these two parcels from DBCSD. And while the parcels were detached 
from DBCSD’s service boundary, looks like they were never removed from the DBCSD’s SOI.  
 
Let me know your preference – 1) does the district want to detachment these two parcels from 
DBCSD’s SOI (yes/no), and if yes, 2) would the district prefer to add this to the current 
application, or have LAFCO staff add it to the LAFCO staff report? 
 
Please advise.  
 
 
Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer 
Contra Costa LAFCO  
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor 
Martinez, CA  94553 
925-313-7133 

LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us 

 
 

CAUTION: This email has been originated outside the organization.  

174



175



176



177



Agenda Item E-6 

See Additional Materials 

178



Agenda Item E-6 

See Additional Materials 

179



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

December 15, 2021 

 
Prepared By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager    
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Storage Space Lease Agreement between the Town of Discovery Bay and 
the Discovery Bay Lions Club and a Storage Space Lease Agreement with the Discovery Bay Community Foundation. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Approve 1) Storage Lease Agreement between the Town of Discovery Bay and the Discovery Bay Lions Club for use of 
Town of Discovery Bay property located on Firwood Drive at the gate on Discovery Bay Blvd (AKA Well Site 4); and 2) 
Storage Lease Agreement between the Town of Discovery Bay and the Discovery Bay Community Foundation for use of 
Town of Discovery Bay property located on Edgeview Drive at the gate on Discovery Bay Blvd (AKA Well Site 3). 
  
Executive Summary 
 
Since 2015 the Town has entered into an annual agreement with Discovery Bay Lions Club to lease former Well Site #4 
(Discovery Bay Blvd @ Firwood Drive gate) and an annual agreement with the Discovery Bay Community Foundation to 
lease former Well Site #3 (Discovery Bay Blvd @ Edgeview Drive gate).  Both organizations are local non-profits that 
support local schools, charitable and civic organizations as well as community events and recreation programs.  
 
The last extensions of the Agreements were approved on December 16, 2020 and are set to expire on December 31, 2021. 
The attached lease agreements extend the same terms as last year, except for a rent increase of 6%.  This raises the 
annual lease amount from $1500 to $1590.  Last year, there was no rent increase.  The lease terms will be for an additional 
12 months commencing on January 1, 2022 and terminating on December 31, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
Approval of Annual Lease Agreements Since 2015 
  
Attachments 
  

1. Discovery Bay Warehouse Storage Space Lease - Well No. 3 Discovery Bay Community Foundation 12/15/21. 
2. Discovery Bay Warehouse Storage Space Lease - Well No. 4 Lions Club 12/15/21. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM: E-7 

180



 
 

1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 
Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 

www.todb.ca.gov 

 
  

 
   

 
 
 
December 15, 2021 
 
 
RE:  Town of Discovery Bay Storage Space Agreement 2021 Lease Extension 
 
The following Extension of Lease Agreement is made by and between the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District (“Lessor”) and the Discovery Bay Community Foundation (“Lessee”), 
collectively referred herein as the “Parties.” 
 
The Parties agree to mutually extend and amend the lease agreement executed by them on April 1, 2016 
and related to the premises including the building located on Edgeview Drive at the gate on Discovery 
Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California APN 008-220-018-9, more commonly referred to as Well Site 3 
as follows: 
 
• The term of said lease is extended for a period of 12 months commencing on January 1, 2022 and 

terminating on December 31, 2022. 
 
• During the extended term, the monthly rent agreed upon in said lease is increased by 6% and 

therefore Tenant shall pay Landlord a monthly rent of $132.50 paid as an annual lump sum of 
$1590.00. 

 
The Parties further acknowledge that all other terms of the lease shall continue during this extended term 
as if set forth herein, and that this agreement shall be binding upon the Parties’ successors, assignees 
and representatives. 
 
 
LESSOR: 
 
 
_______________           ______________________________________ 
Date               Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
                Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
 
LESSEE: 
 
_______________           ______________________________________ 
Date               Print Name 
 
  
                ______________________________________ 
                Sign Name 
                Discovery Bay Community Foundation 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

181

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 
Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 

www.todb.ca.gov 

 
  

 
   

 
 
 
December 15, 2021 
 
 
RE:  Town of Discovery Bay Storage Space Agreement 2021 Lease Extension 
 
The following Extension of Lease Agreement is made by and between the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District (“Lessor”) and the Discovery Bay Lions Club (“Lessee”), collectively referred 
herein as the “Parties.” 
 
The Parties agree to mutually extend and amend the lease agreement executed by them on April 1, 2016 
and related to the premises including the building located at Firwood Drive at the gate on Discovery Bay 
Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California APN 008-230-037-7, more commonly referred to as Well Site 4 as 
follows: 
 
• The term of said lease is extended for a period of 12 months commencing on January 1, 2022 and 

terminating on December 31, 2022. 
 
• During the extended term, the monthly rent agreed upon in said lease is increased by 6% and 

therefore Tenant shall pay Landlord a monthly rent of $132.50 paid as an annual lump sum of 
$1590.00. 

 
The Parties further acknowledge that all other terms of the lease shall continue during this extended term 
as if set forth herein, and that this agreement shall be binding upon the Parties’ successors, assignees 
and representatives. 
 
 
LESSOR: 
 
 
_______________           ______________________________________ 
Date               Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
                Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
 
LESSEE: 
 
_______________           ______________________________________ 
Date               Print Name 
 
  
                ______________________________________ 
                Sign Name 
                Discovery Bay Lions Club 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

182

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 
 
1564535-1 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

December 15, 2021 

 
Prepared By: Andrew Pinasco, District Legal 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager   
 
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Provide Direction to Town General Manager and Staff Regarding Director Term Limits 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Decide whether the Town’s Board of Directors want to consider a future agenda item to adopt a proposal limiting the 
number of terms a Director may serve on the Town’s Board of Directors and direct the Town’s General Manager and staff 
accordingly.  
  
Executive Summary 
 
In accordance with the California Community Services District Law, the term of office of each member of the Town’s Board 
of Directors is four years or until his or her successor qualifies and takes office. Current California law does not limit how 
many terms a Town Director may serve.  
 
By California law, the Town’s Directors may adopt, or the Town’s voting residents may propose, by initiative, a proposal to 
limit or repeal a limit on the number of terms a Director may serve on the Town’s Board of Directors. Any proposal to limit 
the number of terms a Director may serve on the Town’s Board of Directors can only apply prospectively, meaning that 
previous terms of re-elected incumbents do not count toward the term limit put in place.  
 
Any limitation on the number of terms a Director may serve only becomes operative after being submitted to Town’s voting 
residents at a regularly scheduled election and a majority of the votes cast on the proposal favor the adoption of the 
proposal.  
 
The procedure for the Town’s Board of Directors to take action to propose a limit to the number of terms a Director may 
serve on the Town’s Board of Directors is as follows: 
 

1. At a noticed public meeting of the Town, a majority of the Town Board of Directors must vote to adopt a term limit 
proposal by resolution requesting the question of whether limits should be imposed to limit the number of terms a 
Director may serve be placed on the ballot of next regularly scheduled election. The resolution would include 
specific information regarding the proposed term limitation and the form of the question to be asked of the voters.  

2. Send the approved resolution to the County Elections Official requesting that question be placed on the ballot of 
the next regularly scheduled election.  

3. If a majority of voters favor the proposal, then the Town will adopt an ordinance imposing the limitation proposed.  
 
As with any Town election, the Town would be responsible for the costs of placing the question of whether limits should be 
imposed to limit the number of terms a Director may serve on the ballot, in addition to the proportional costs of conducting 
the regularly scheduled election.  
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item  -   
   
Attachments 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: E-8 

183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190


	Agenda Meeting Cover Sheet.pdf
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	121521 Agenda RegularBOD Meeting(1576492.2).pdf
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	Community Center
	1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California
	Download Agenda Packet and Materials at www.todb.ca.gov
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.)
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	C1  111721 Regular BOD DRAFT Minutes_mk.pdf
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	C2 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices.pdf
	C2 RFA 121521.pdf
	ALLTotal

	C3 TODB AB 361 Continuing Resolution(1564211.2).pdf
	D2  11-2021 Veolia Presentation.pdf
	Water and Waste Water Monthly Report �Town of Discovery Bay
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9

	D3  Landscape Median Project.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	E1  Staff Report - Board Rep to Lakeshore HOA Meeting.pdf
	E2  Staff Report- Caltrans Striping Plan Updated.pdf
	E2  DB Proposed Striping Plan Updated.pdf
	E3  ERP Staff Report BOD.pdf
	E3  Town of Discovery Bay Public Water System CA0710009 Emergency Response Plan 2021.pdf
	E4  Staff Report -Contracting Bond Underwriter-Counsel-Muncipal Advisor-Finance Committee v2 all edits.pdf
	E5  Staff Report - 12.15.21 W&WW Committee Annexation of Plant #2.pdf
	Agenda Title  

	E5  EXH-TODB_Annexation_Wastwater_Plant_2-Layout1 (002).pdf
	E5  LAFCO 12.7.2021 email for 2 parcels removal from SOI.pdf
	E5 todbcsd detach from BBID.pdf
	E6  Agenda Item E-6.pdf
	E6 GSP Additional Materials Notice.pdf
	E7  Staff Report Lease Agreements - DB Foundation and Lion's Club Rev.pdf
	E7  Storage Space Lease Extension - Community Foundation 121521.pdf
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	E7  Storage Space Lease Extension - Lions Club 121621.pdf
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	E8  Staff Report Term Limits Direction(1576308.1).pdf
	I1  Additional Material - ECCFPD Meeting 11-10-2021.pdf
	I2  Additional Material - ECCFPD Meeting 11-15-2021.pdf
	I3  Additional Material - Aviation Meeting 11-15-2021.pdf



